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30 Years of Innovation
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1975

With US$5,000 initial capital investment and
as a manufacturer representative of molding
compound and encapsulation mold, ASM
was co-founded by the present chairman,
Arthur H. del Prado and the present
managing director, Patrick Lam as a wholly
owned subsidiary of Dutch company ASM

International.
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SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS
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ASSEMBLY AUTOMATION LIMITED

D ON THE 20TH DAY OF

1950

ASM Assembly Automation Ltd.
(AAA), involved in manual wire
bonder manufacturing, was acquired and
reorganised with new key management
and strengthened R&D functions.
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1951

ASM Assembly Materials Ltd (AAM) was
acquired and after company restructuring,
an automated leadframe stamping and
plating factory was established.
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1959

ASM Precision Machinery Manufactory Ltd
was established in Shenzhen, China for
the fabrication of metal parts and

subassemblies. An enlarged leadframe
factory in Hong Kong with newly equipped

1988

ASM was listed on the Hong Kong Stock

clean room facilities came on stream
towards the end of the year.
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capitalization of US$75 million. The Group’s
automatic die bonder, model AD809, was
awarded “The Federation of Hong Kong
Industries Award for Good Design in
Machinery and Equipment for Improving
Manufacturing Process Category” in the
1988 Governor’'s awards for Hong Kong
design competition organised by The

Hong Kong Federation of Industries.
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1990

ASM Technology Singapore Pte Ltd was
established as the second ASM R&D and
business centre, facilitating ASM’s market
coverage in the southern region.
Preparation for our own ASM building
commenced and production of our new
AB309 gold wire bonder was relocated to
Singapore. The success of our China venture
prompted our expansion in Shatoujiao,
Shenzhen.
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30 Years of Innovation
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1997

The stunning technological success of the
gold wire bonder AB339 with 50 micron
pad-pitch capability, puts ASM among the
world's top three assembly equipment
suppliers. Market acceptance of the ASM
IDEALine provides a factory automation

solution needed by the industry.
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With its record turnover ASM became the
world’s second largest semiconductor
assembly equipment manufacturer.

IAH B A2 SR80 5 E 50 - ASMERTH /3 2 3R
BRI ERERRERIER -

2002

ASM rose to become the world leader in the
Semiconductor Assembly and Packaging
Equipment Industry and is known for its
process innovation, packaging development,
factory automation, and total solution
marketing strategies.
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2003

ASM expands its factory operations in China
occupying over 70,000 square metres of
floor space, including a new stamped
leadframe plant in Fu Yong, Shenzhen.
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Finance Asia Magazine voted ASM as one of

the ten best managed companies in Asia.
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2005

ASM completes construction of its new
280,000 square feet Malaysian factory
equipped with new strip plating lines for
her etched leadframe production.
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Financial Highlights
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Profit (HK$'000)
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For the year ended 31 December 2005 HE-_ZTRFT_A=1+T—RHLFE
2005 2004
—EFLE —EEMF
HK$/000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Turnover B 3,536,855 3,828,930
Cost of sales 55 B P A (1,926,077) (2,097,617)
Gross profit EF 1,610,778 1,731,313
Other income H b ez 21,283 9,278
Selling expenses HEBMA (316,950) (291,733)
General and administrative expenses —REEEHR (143,534) (123,876)
Research and development expenses, net MREERFZH (267,638) (262,585)
Finance costs 81 7% & (15) (15)
Profit before taxation F B AT & A 903,924 1,062,382
Income tax expense FTi5 B F & (53,439) (59,787)
Profit for the year I E i T 850,485 1,002,595
Dividends & & 772,865 788,002
Earnings per share & s A
— Basic — EXK HK$2.21 HKS$2.61
HEE2.21T B 2.617T
— Diluted — #E HK$2.20 HK$2.60
2,207 7 #2.607T




Chairman’s Statement
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Results

We are pleased to report that ASM Pacific Technology Limited

and its subsidiaries (the “Group” or “ASM”) achieved a turnover
amounting to HK$3,536,855,000 in the fiscal year ended

31 December 2005, representing a decrease of 7.6% as compared
with HK$3,828,930,000 for the previous year. The Group's
consolidated profit for the year is HK$850,485,000, which is
15.2% lower than the previous year’s consolidated profit of
HK$1,002,595,000. Basic earnings per share for the year
amounted to HK$2.21 (2004: HKS$2.61).

Dividend

An interim dividend of HK$0.50 (2004: HK$0.45) per share
and first special dividend of HK$0.20 per share were paid in
August 2005. Having established a solid foundation in the
microelectronics market over the years, ASM intends to further its
organic growth path in the near term through enlarging its market
share with diversified, high performance products. There is no short
term need for major cash outlay and the Group has consistently
generated significant positive cash flow from operations in each of
the past nine years. In view of our strong liquidity and rising equity
base, the Board of Directors have decided to recommend a final and
second special dividend of HK$1.00 (2004: HK$1.05) per share and
HK$0.30 per share respectively payable on or around 28 April 2006,
making a total dividend payment of HK$2.00 (2004: HK$2.05) per
share for the year ended 31 December 2005, inclusive of HK$0.50
per share of special dividend. This translates into a 90.9% dividend
payout ratio for the current year profit; representing a prudent
decision to return current excessive cash holdings to our
shareholders while continuing to operate the Group with the
optimum shareholders’ funds.

Turnover by Geographical Location (HK$'000)
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Chaitrman’s Statement continued
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Review

Despite record energy prices and a series of natural disasters, the
buoyant world economy and political stability have resulted in
fairly strong consumer spending, especially for devices like cell

phones, digital cameras, MP3 music players and digital televisions.

The personal computer segment, which has the largest appetite
for semiconductors, remained strong. As a result, worldwide
demand for semiconductors increased in all end markets over the
last twelve months. When the industry recovered and
strengthened, most pundits revised their forecasts upward in the
middle of the year. According to several leading industry analysts
like SIA, Dataquest and VLSI Research, global semiconductor sales
jumped 6.8 - 7.7% in 2005.

After experiencing growth in excess of 40% in 2004 and starting
off the year from the trough of the business cycle, every major
player in the semiconductor assembly and packaging equipment
industry experienced negative growth in 2005. While the
inflection point took place in March and inflows of orders
strengthened over the months, major purchases of capacity-
related equipment during the second-half could not offset the
previous soft period. According to recent data released by SEMI,
VLSI Research and Dataquest, the global assembly equipment
market shrank by 11 - 19% as compared with 2004, in line with
their projection of double-digit decline made a year ago.

Over the last few years, ASM has consistently outperformed its
industry peers and this year was no different: we gained market
share and maintained our number one position in the global
assembly and packaging equipment market, achieving a Group
turnover of US$454.9 million and net profit of HK$850.5 million.
Both are ASM’s third highest in history, although a minor

reduction of 7.6% and 15.2% respectively as compared with 2004.

Turnover by Products (HKSMillion)
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Chairman’s Statement continued
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Review continued

Return on capital employed and on sales were 37.8% and 25.1%
respectively, once again our third best on record. In a year of
recovery with sequential improvements in quarterly bookings and
billings, book-to-bill ratio was 1.09 for the year and our ending
order backlog as of 31 December 2005 grew to US$102 million
(US$63 million as of 31 December 2004).

In 2005, sales attributable to our five largest customers combined
were 28.3% of the total, with no customer exceeding 10%,
further evidence of the continuing success of our diversified
market strategy. We also enjoyed a good geographical spread
mirroring the investment climate of the industry, with China
becoming our largest (21.9%) market, swopping positions with
last year’s leader Taiwan (21.0%) for the first time. Shipments of
US$99.7 million to the former created another new record for

that territory.

Over the years, ASM has built a solid business foundation based
on diversified products serving broad application markets. Recent
years’ financial performances have clearly reflected the growing
acceptance of our products by a larger pool of customers. With
equipment revenue of U5$368.4 million, equivalent to 81.0%

of the Group’s turnover in 2005, ASM was the top player in its
industry, a premier position we have held since 2002. We
maintained a gap of US$75 million between ourselves and our
competitors, representing 25% delta as compared with our closest
rival. Unfortunately we could not avoid the general industry
setback, and our equipment business declined slightly by 11.9%

over the last twelve months.

Our leadframe business made good progress last year. Improved
market demands coupled with capacity expansion and operational
improvements in our China, Singapore and Malaysian plants
resulted in 16.8% growth of our leadframe business to U5$86.5
million in 2005, representing our record leadframe revenue and
19.0% of the Group's turnover. Both our stamped and QFN etched
frames made substantial inroads in target markets, growing faster
than the leadframe industry as a whole which increased by 1.7%
last year according to SEMI’s November 2005 report. Clearly the
strategic realignment of our leadframe operation has yielded

its dividends. While the transfer of all etched frames plating
activities to Malaysia has been slower than expected due to the
lengthy customer qualification process, the enlarged operation,
when completed during the first half of 2006, should further

enhance ASM’s cost-competitiveness and output of QFN frames.
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Chairman’s Statement continued
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Review continued

The ever-increasing demands of end-users mean that tech
companies are continually driven to deliver solutions in response.
Our customers’ unrelenting needs for ever lower assembly and
packaging costs, new package types like QFN, stacked die, stacked
package, flip chip and system-in-package, and the ceaseless push
of the technology envelope on fine pitch wire bonding, thin die
attachment and ultra thin molded packages necessitate innovative

solutions and strong R&D commitments from equipment suppliers.

To further enhance our market position in a competitive business
environment, ASM’s strategy has been to deliver the best value
propositions to our customers. Satisfying the diversity of today’s
package types and applications require multiple platforms for
almost every assembly process, such as our Twin Eagle and

Eagle 60 AP gold wire bonders optimizing cost-of-ownership and
ultra fine pitch technology respectively. Similarly, the launching
last year of our ultra high speed I.C. die bonder catering for
smaller die sizes complemented our standard platform in wafer
size and throughput capabilities. The introduction of our Osprey
molding system in mid-2005 for high density matrix substrates set
a new benchmark for tooling cost and order leadtime, highly
desirable for improving the asset utilization of the backend
assembly process. Equipped with high performance linear motors,
our new model of aluminum wire bonder that migrated to volume
production last year not only solidified ASM’s two-decade
leadership in the chip-on-board application market, but offered
customers a good solution for finer pitch, multi-die and high
throughput requirements. All these new products and solutions
could not have been developed in such a short time without our
600 R&D staff located in Hong Kong and Singapore, and an ever-
increasing R&D expenditure that amounted to HK$267.6 million
last year (2004: HK$262.6 million), representing 9.3% of our

current year’s equipment sales.

While we had to deal with a much wider range of products than in
the past and production run rates at the end of the year were
much higher than the previous year, we continued to streamline
our working capital management with positive results. Last year
we achieved an inventory turnover of 6.08 times (2004: 7.06
times), with an ending inventory of HK$609.3 million to deal with
the much higher revenue. Although capital investments
amounting to HK$194.8 million were made in 2005, our sound
working capital management resulted in a free cash flow of
HKS$619.7 million (2004: HK$957.6 million) and a return on
invested capital of 55.1% (2004: 67.2%) last year.
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Chairman’s Statement continued
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Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s shareholders’ funds increased slightly to
HK$2,393,534,000 as at 31 December 2005 (2004:
HK$2,177,465,000). As there were no long term borrowings,

gearing of the Group was zero, the same as for the past six years.

Although HK$674.2 million was paid as dividends and

HK$194.8 million was spent in capital investments during the
twelve-month period, due to good control of working capital and
strong positive cash flow from operation, cash on hand as of

31 December 2005 was HK$728,927,000 (2004: HK$763,359,000).
In fact, a good portion of the capital investments were funded by

the current year’s depreciation of HK$154.4 million.

There was no bank borrowing as of 31 December 2005. Current
ratio was 3.42, and a debt-equity ratio of 27.3%. With no short-
term needs and an on-going positive cash flow from organic
growth operation, these figures permit ASM management to
recommend a sustained high level of dividend to return excessive
cash holdings to our shareholders. While account receivables have
been tightly monitored during the year, due to highest turnover in
the last quarter of the year, it resulted in 88.2 days sales
outstanding (2004: 57.0 days).

The Group has minimal currency exposure as the majority of all
sales were denominated in U.S. dollars. On the other hand, the
disbursements were mainly in U.S. dollars, Hong Kong dollars,
Singapore dollars and Renminbi. The limited yen-based
receivables were offset by some accounts payables in yen to

Japanese vendors.

Human resources

ASM places strong emphasis on both recruiting and retaining high
calibre employees, not only through competitive remuneration
packages but also by committing ourselves to specialized yet
demanding staff development and training programs. In general,
salary review is conducted annually. In addition to salary
payments, other benefits include contributions to provident fund
schemes and medical subsidies. Discretionary bonus and bonus
shares may be granted to eligible staff based on the Group’s

financial results and individual performance.

As of 31 December 2005, the total headcount of the Group

worldwide was approximately 7,800 people.
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Chairman’s Statement continued

F A

Prospects

The Semiconductor Industry Association (SIA) reported that sales
of semiconductors for consumer applications have since 2004
exceeded that for corporate purposes. In future, the health of the
chip sector will be more closely tied to macroeconomic conditions
and consumer spending. Semiconductor content has been
consistently rising as electronics end products continue to demand
more functions and capabilities. Based on current market outlook,
most industry analysts (SIA, WSTS, Dataquest, iSuppli, VLSI Research)
project a moderate single-digit (6.7 - 8.0%) growth for the
semiconductor industry in 2006, to be followed by higher growth
rate close to 10% in 2007. 1C unit volume is forecasted to have a
compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 9.31% over the 2004 -
2009 period, according to the 2005 Electronic Trend Publication.

The constant challenges of higher performance, diversified
functionalities, cost reduction and product miniaturization,
especially for feature-rich hand-held products, mean that more
and more IC packages are being designed with finer line width,
chip scale (QFN) and chip size (flip chip) form factors, stacked die,
stacked package (PoP) and system-in-package (SiP), requiring the
latest generation of assembly equipment. For the assembly
equipment market, the rate of change this year will depend on
whether the market can sustain the strong momentum of the first
two quarters into the second half of 2006. While all pundits
project a positive growth for 2006, their numbers are somewhat
divergent at this point ranging from 3.6 - 22.1% (VLSI Research
3.6%, SEMI 9.0%, Dataquest 22.1%).

Managing and developing multiple products, especially to serve
diversified market segments, is more challenging than a narrowly
focused approach. Nevertheless, we have continued with this
business strategy over the years to build a thriving company more
resilient to inevitable industry fluctuation than our competitors.
Our persistent, simultaneous pursuit of differentiation and low
cost have resulted in world-class products whose value
propositions are unmatched by our rivals. In addition to our
leadership position in the die and wire bonder market segments,
the good progress we made in recent years on flip chip bonders,
encapsulation equipment, integrated test handlers and other chip
size/scale (CSP) assembly equipment has laid a solid foundation
for future growth, empowering ASM to aggressively pursue new
market opportunities. After realigning our cost structure and
expanding production capacity, our leadframe business is well-
poised for further gain in market share. Leading customers have
shown their recognition of ASM’s leadframe manufacturing
capabilities and our long-term commitment to this business, and
demonstrated their intention to expand business with us.
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Chairman’s Statement continued
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Prospects continued

Gaining important competitive advantages - and corresponding
profitable returns - requires aggressive and consistent
investments for the future in R&D, manpower development and
facilities. This is precisely the strategy ASM has been pursuing for
many years. While all our major competitors have consistently
reduced their R&D spending in recent times due to profit squeeze,
our R&D expenditures and our talent pool have risen year after
year. We have maintained our policy of spending 10% of
equipment turnover on research and development (R&D) and
ignored short-term sales fluctuation. Similarly, we continue to
budget annually substantial capital investment to strengthen our
R&D analytical equipment, information technology infrastructure,
fabricated parts production capacity and the enhancement of
manufacturing capabilities and capacity of our leadframe plants.
HK$200 million has been planned for 2006.

Leveraging on our in-house enabling technologies, new product
development efforts are centered around a continued rejuvenation
of our die and wire bonders, encapsulation system, CSP
singulation system and integrated test handler, simultaneously
injecting higher performance and lower cost of manufacturing into
the new products. We have also organized R&D teams to address
the multi-chip die bonding and chip-on-glass (COG) flip chip
market segments - applications that our human resources could

not cope with in the past.

Solution-selling has become a powerful marketing tool in this
knowledge-based economy. Providing customers with innovative,
total packaging solutions based on ASM’s equipment and
leadframes to meet their ever-expanding new product
requirements has proven to be our most effective tool to unlock
customer doors. This unique business strategy truly differentiates
ASM from all our competitors, enabling us to further expand our

business and promote newly developed products.
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Twin Eagle

With US$368.4 million annual equipment revenue in 2005,
representing the third highest of its kind in the company historical
record, ASM maintained the top position in its industry attained
since 2002.
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Chaitrman’s Statement continued
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Prospects continued

Over the years we have built up a wealth of technologies and

human talent within ASM. Our track record of successful execution

of our customer-centered business strategy speaks for itself, and
coupled with our industry’s most efficient cost structure and our
wide range of product offerings, ASM is well-positioned to
compete in the global arena. In any dynamic market
environment, the player with richer resources and more
competitive products always has the advantage. As such it is
management’s belief that ASM will continue to outperform our
industry peers and maintain our leadership position in the

foreseeable future.

Appreciation

Last year we produced exceptional results, and this year, in spite
of a more difficult industry situation, ASM has once again come
out well ahead of the pack. As I said in 2005, this has only been
possible because the men and women of many different
nationalities in many countries who constitute the ASM family
have continued to turn in outstanding performances in their work
every day. The Board is only too aware that as a company, ASM’s
success is built on the efforts of those who work within it, and we
would like once again to place on record our appreciation of their

accomplishments during the past year.

Arthur H. del Prado
Chairman
21 February 2006
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RFID machine

In 2005 our newly developed RFID (Radio Frequency Identification
Device) flip chip bonding machines were shipped to two customers
for their pilot-line production.

20055 - 1 5] B 74 7 5 5% 49 [ 57 #78 5)
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Management Discussion
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Overview

Developing and marketing multiple products to serve diversified
market segments is certainly more challenging than the narrowly
focused approach adopted by most of our competitors. However,
this business strategy has time and again proven to be a powerful
weapon to protect us against inevitable industry fluctuation and
enabled ASM to build a thriving company. We experienced 47%
Group revenue growth in the previous year, but starting off

2005 from the trough of the business cycle, the sequential
improvement in quarterly bookings and billings during the year
could not offset the setback of the first six months. Yet ASM’s
drop in turnover, common to all leading players in the assembly
equipment industry, was smaller than most of its competitors and
Our

Group turnover, profitability and returns were the third best in our

better than those changes estimated by industry analysts.

corporate history, clearly reflecting ASM’s seamless execution of
its winning strategies and continuously increasing momentum in
the market place.

The proliferation of package types in leaded, unleaded, ball grid
array (BGA), chip scale/size package (CSP) and wafer level
package (WLP), as well as those high density packages like
stacked die, stacked package (PoP) and system-in-package (SiP)
demands a lot more equipment, process and packaging solutions.
We intend to win customers by using ASM’s technology, cost
structure (the most efficient in the industry) and human and
financial resources accumulated over the years to further broaden
our innovative product offerings, simultaneously pursuing
differentiation and low cost with value innovations unmatched by
our rivals. This unique business strategy truly distinguishes us
from all our competitors, enabling ASM to sustain its

global leadership.

and Analysts
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AD9012+5R902 Line

Two top-ten IDMs have adopted our eutectic-solder-reflow-process
flip chip bonder for their SiP volume production.
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Management Discussion and Analysis continued
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Overview continued

Buoyed by strong demands for semiconductors in portable
electronics such as cell phones, MP3 players and digital cameras,
healthy consumption of the same in PCs, servers, games and
automotive applications, and a positive macroeconomic outlook,
pundits are currently projecting a moderate single-digit

(6.7 - 8.0%) growth for the semiconductor industry in 2006.

In fact, assembly equipment orders have been strong in the recent
months resulting in a higher order backlog for ASM. While every
industry analyst projects a gain for the assembly equipment
market in 2006, their numbers are somewhat divergent, ranging
from 3.6 - 22.1% (VLSI Research 3.6%, SEMI 9.0%, Dataquest
22.1%). Although most customers are indicating a positive
outlook for the first half, order visibility remains limited. The
growth of the assembly equipment market this year is generally
believed to depend on whether the industry can sustain the
strong momentum of the first two quarters into the second half
of 2006.

Market and Product Development
EQUIPMENT DIVISION

In a year of double-digit decline (Dataquest -11.1%, VLSI Research
-13.3%, SEMI -19.1%) for the assembly equipment industry,

ASM once again outperformed most of its competitors in revenue
change. Building on our industry-largest market share, our
equipment business dipped slightly by 11.9% to US$368.4 million,
representing 81% of the Group’s turnover in 2005 and the third
highest in our corporate history. We maintained the number one
position in the assembly and packaging equipment industry we
have held since 2002 with a revenue gap of US$75 million or
25% between us and our closest rival.
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Image Sensor Line

ASM is the sole leader in providing particle-controlled image sensor
in-line assembly solutions, supplying all major manufacturers of

such cleanliness-sensitive devices.

ASMZ #I F 1R 1 15 B IE R IR AR R T SR M — (R FE S
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Management Discussion and Analysis continued
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Market and Product Development continued
EQUIPMENT DIVISION CONTINUED

The electronics industry is characterized by its continuous drive for
greater miniaturization, faster speed, more efficient electrical and
thermal performances, and higher functionalities with lower cost
for each generation of product. To support device manufacturers
facing these challenges, equipment suppliers increasingly have to
deliver customized solutions that answer the specific customer’s
needs. ASM now has multiple platforms for almost every major
assembly process: die bonding, aluminum wire bonding, gold
wire bonding, flip chip bonding, encapsulation, package
singulation, test handling and LED die sorting. In particular, ASM
provides two unique products not offered by our competition: the
dual-head gold wire bonder (Twin Eagle) and our Osprey molding
system. The unmatched low cost-of-ownership of the former, and
the built-in flexibility and tooling-investment protection for the
latter have attracted many customers who recognize the huge

potential savings these new ASM products can generate.

While small relative to our die and wire bonder businesses, we
have seen our chip size/scale packaging (CSP) equipment sales
rising at a much higher pace in the recent years. Two top-ten
IDMs have adopted our eutectic-solder-reflow-process flip chip
bonder for their SiP application, whereas some customers have
already selected this cost-efficient flip chip bonder for image
sensor volume manufacturing. Last year we also shipped newly-
developed RFID (radio frequency identification device) bonding
machines to two customers for their pilot-line production.
Concurrently ASM has become the sole leader in providing particle-
controlled image sensor in-line assembly solutions, supplying all

major manufacturers of such cleanliness-sensitive devices.
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Osprey

The world’s smallest encapsulation system, a very unique product
of its kind only offered by ASM, has attracted many customers
who recognize the huge potential savings this unique product
can generate.
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Management Discussion and Analysis continued
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Market and Product Development continued
EQUIPMENT DIVISION CONTINUED

The underlying strength of our equipment business lies not just
in our leadership position in the wire and die bonder market
segments - the largest and 2nd largest sectors in our industry -
but also in our host of product offerings in CSP equipment,
encapsulation, solder ball placement, package singulation,
integrated test handling, LED sorting and power LED assembly.
As ASM only entered most of these medium-size market
segments during the past five years, we stand a good chance of
securing a larger share of them in time. With continuous product
enhancement and market development efforts, we expect these
products to generate valuable dividends in the not too

distant future.

LEADFRAME DIVISION

Thanks to increased market demands, capacity expansion and
operational improvements in our China, Singapore and Malaysian
plants, ASM achieved a 16.8% gain in leadframe turnover last
year, with the US$86.5 million revenue representing 19% of the
Group’s total sales. In fact, our sales in the 2nd half year
exceeded USS$50 million and we made record billings in the last
three consecutive quarters. This compares very favourably with
the SEMI November 2005 report estimating the leadframe
industry to have grown 1.7% in 2005, and is evidence of our good
progress in strengthening our leadframe competitive position
through strategic realignment.

Last year, we also succeeded in developing fine pitch, high
leadcount TQFP stamped leadframe products at our China factory,
generating higher business volume to share the necessary
overhead. While the qualification process of our new Malaysian
plant for some customers was longer than expected, we have
been busy installing and characterizing new plating machines and
producing first articles for customers, aiming to complete the
transfer of our plating operation from Singapore to Malaysia by
mid-2006. This restructuring, when fully operational, should
enable us to boost the output of QFN frames and position ASM for
further gain in market share.
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ATM Plating lines

A substantial portion of our HKS194.8 million capital expenditure
in 2005 was used to equip our new Malaysian factory with parts
fabrication and leadframe processing capabilities to cope with
the enlarged volume.
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Market and Product Development continued
LEADFRAME DIVISION CONTINUED

Commercializing our past development efforts in super fine pitch
etching and stamping, converting our pilot lines for ultra-high
precision plating, bleed control and moisture sensitivity level
(MSL 1) into high volume automated manufacturing, improving
production yield and shortening our manufacturing cycle time all
require significant capital investments and further developments
in more capable machinery. Fortunately, the migration to lead-
free electronics and QFN packaging has provided golden
opportunities for ASM. Our palladium-plated leadframes have
facilitated ASM’s market penetration into several target integrated
device manufacturers (IDMs), while we have leveraged on our
total packaging solution and QFN frame etching capabilities to
build a strong presence in the rapidly expanding QFN leadframe

market segment.

Financial

Riding on our market-share gains in the gradually recovering
assembly equipment and leadframe markets, we achieved
earnings in excess of HK$850 million in 2005, although turnover
dipped slightly by 7.6% to US$454.9 million. Even though the
diversity of ASM’s products expands year on year, amidst
production run rates in the 4th quarter significantly higher than
twelve months ago we only needed to slightly increase (by
HKS$54.5 million) our total year-end inventory to HK$609.3 million,
attaining an inventory turnover of 6.08 times. Receivables have
been tightly monitored, resulting in 88 days sales outstanding.
Bad debt exposure, if any, is immaterial and well-covered by
provisions made in conformity with the Company’s policy.

As such, a cash conversion cycle of 143.8 days, a free cash flow
of HK$619.7 million and a return on invested capital of 55.1%

were achieved in 2005.
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Matrix QFP and QFN Leadframes

Our leadframe sales in the second half of 2005 exceeded
USS50 million and we made sequential record billings in the
last three consecutive quarters.
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Financial continued
Notwithstanding that HK$674.2 million was paid as dividends and

HK$194.8 million spent in capital investments during the twelve-
month period, cash on hand as of 31 December 2005 was
HK$728,927,000 (2004: HK$763,359,000) with the majority of
the capital investments being funded by the current year’s
depreciation of HK$154,445,000.

With no bank borrowing either for short or long term, ASM
achieved an all bank debt to equity ratio of zero and no gearing
for the Group, essentially the same situation as during the past
six years. Net interest income amounted to HK$15.0 million for
the year. With rigorous control over our current assets and
liabilities, the current ratio stood comfortably at 3.42. The Group’s
shareholders’ funds increased 9.9% to HK$2,393,534,000 as of

31 December 2005 (2004: HKS$2,177,465,000). Order backlog
amounted to US$102 million on the same date.

ASM's strong financial position is the result of our consistently
profitable and cash-generating business performance in past
years, as well as our conservative fiscal policy, prudent
investment planning and strict working capital management.
With no short term need for major cash outlay while we continue
our organic growth strategy, we aim to continue our policy of
operating the Group with the optimum shareholder fund and

returning any excessive cash holdings to our shareholders.

Capacity and Plant Development

In addition to our continuous investments to augment our
research and development (R&D) and information technology (IT)
infrastructure, substantial portion of the capital expenditure in
2005 were for equipping our new Malaysian factory with parts
fabrication and leadframe processing capabilities, as well as
expanding our China leadframe operation in Fu Yong with new
stamping presses and dies to cope with the enlarged volume.
HK$194.8 million was invested last year, in line with our budget

announced twelve months ago.
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Multi-chip die bonder development

We have dedicated R&D resources to develop equipment for the
growing multi-chip die bonding application, aiming for marketable
products in 2007.
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Capacity and Plant Development continued

While our capital investment strategy for 2006 will follow the
traditional path of enhancing our R&D analytical equipment,

IT infrastructure, parts fabrication and leadframe production
capacity, we intend to upgrade our Singapore etching plant to
address the increased QFN demands and also create a new parts
fabrication centre at our leadframe plant in Fu Yong, China. The
latter move is part of our long-term strategic plan to boost our
CNC parts fabrication capacity to support our growing equipment
business. Furthermore, we also specifically aim at proliferating
laser tube-cutting and robotic welding at our Sha Tou Jiao, China
plant to automate our chassis manufacturing for higher quality
and efficiency. Altogether HK$200 million has been budgeted

for capacity and plant development in 2006.

Research and Development

After three decades of IC packaging format creations such as
through-hole plastic dual-in-line (DIP), surface-mounted device
(SMD), ball-grid array (BGA), flip chip (FC) and quad-flat pack
with no lead (QFN), and constant evolution towards
miniaturization, the semiconductor industry continues its
packaging journey in basically two directions: application-driven
devices and high-density packaging integrating the known
assembly processes. Examples of the former include smart
cards, RFID, sensors (a CMOS image sensor as a camera module
is one well-known example), MEMS, high brightness LED,
photonic devices, etc., and they all require customized
equipment to achieve certain performance and cost objectives.
on the other hand, high-density packaging such as stacked

die (SD), stacked package (PoP), system-in-package (SiP) and
multi-chip module (MCM) are typically based on the traditional
assembly processes. However, these high-density packages
tend to stretch the technology envelopes of the processing
machines, requiring new generation of assembly systems with

refined capabilities.
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Manufacturing automation

We also specifically aim at proliferating laser tube-cutting and
robotic welding at our Shatoujiao plant in China to automate
our chassis manufacturing for higher quality and efficiency.
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Research and development continued

While different application niches and known processing
technologies will coexist in the future, to sustain our continued
leadership in this dynamic industry, management believes ASM
should address these challenges simultaneously. Until now we
have prioritized our product development programs according to
talent availability and market maturity. Building on our advanced
enabling technologies such as motion control, vision systems,
optics, materials and reliability, in addition to coming up with

a new generation of existing products, we have dedicated R&D
resources to develop equipment for the growing multi-chip die
bonding and chip-on-glass (COG) flip chip applications, aiming for
marketable products in 2007. It is our firm belief that solution-
selling is the most effective marketing tool in this knowledge-

based economy.

Unlike all our major competitors who have consistently reduced
their R&D spending and trimmed their development projects
due to profit squeeze, we have enlarged our research and
development teams based in Hong Kong and Singapore to over
600 people and embarked on further product development. In
2005, our net R&D expenditure increased by 1.9% to HK$267.6
million (2004: HKS$262.6 million), representing 9.3% of our

equipment sales and in line with our R&D funding guidelines.
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Dairectors’ Report
HHERA

The Directors present their annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended

31 December 2005.

Principal activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company.

Its principal subsidiaries are engaged in the design, manufacture
and marketing of machines, tools and materials used in the
semiconductor industry.

Results and appropriations

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$1.00 (2004: HK$1.05) per share, a second special dividend of
HK$0.30 (2004: nil) per share which together with the interim
dividend of HK$0.50 (2004: HK$0.45) per share and first special
dividend of HK$0.20 (2004: HK$0.55) per share paid during the
year, makes a total dividend for the year of HK$2.00 (2004:
HK$2.05) per share, and the retention of the remaining profit for
the year of HK$77,620,000.

Details of the results of the Group are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 55.

Property, plant and equipment

During the year, the Group continued to expand its manufacturing
facilities. The Group acquired plant and machinery for
approximately HK$143 million and invested approximately

HK$52 million on building new manufacturing facilities in Malaysia
and upgrading the manufacturing, support and other facilities.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 17 to

the financial statements.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December

2005 are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Share capital

0n 15 December 2005, 1,791,000 shares were issued at par to
certain employees pursuant to their entitlements under the

Company’s Employee Share Incentive Scheme.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.
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Daurectors’ Report continued

WA

Distributable reserves of the Company

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders,
calculated in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, amounted to HK$1,194,639,000 (2004:
HK$1,079,510,000). In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, dividend can only be distributed out of profits of

the Company.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Arthur H. del Prado, Chairman

Lam See Pong, Patrick, Managing Director
Fung Shu Kan, Alan

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Orasa Livasiri

Tang Koon Hung, Eric

Lee Shiu Hung, Robert

In accordance with Articles 113 and 114 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Lam See Pong, Patrick and Fung Shu Kan, Alan
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office for each Non-executive Director is the period up
to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association.

Biographical details of Directors as at the date of this report are:

Arthur H. del Prado is the Chairman of the Company and
President, Chief Executive Officer and founder of ASM International
N.V. (“ASM International”), the holding company of the Company.
He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of ASM International.
Mr. del Prado currently serves on the Board of several
companies, civic and non profit organizations, among which the
MEDEA+ Board, the “Micro Electronics Development for European
Applications” project. Arthur H. del Prado was formerly a member
of the Board of Directors of: Océ van der Grinten Nederland N.V,,
Manufacturer of Copiers and Printers; G.T.I. Holding N.V., an
Electronic Equipment and Installations company; Delft Instruments
N.V., a Manufacturer of High-Technology Industrial and Defence
Products; Breevast N.V., Project Development and Management;
Dujat, Dutch & Japanese Trade Federation and ABN-AMRO Bank,
Advisory Counsel.
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Darectors” Report continued

R

Directors continued

Lam See Pong, Patrick, Executive Director, aged 57, is the
Managing Director of the Company. Mr. Lam is also the Vice
President of Asian Operations of ASM International and a director
of certain subsidiaries of ASM International. He has a Bachelor of
Science degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of
Manitoba, Canada, a Diploma in Management Studies from the
University of Hong Kong, and a Masters degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He has
over 30 years of experience in computer and semiconductor
industry. He joined the Group in 1975 and was responsible for

founding ASM International’s operation in South East Asia.

Fung Shu Kan, Alan, Executive Director, aged 55, is the Financial
Director of the Group in charge of financial planning and control.
He obtained his Diploma and Masters degree in Business
Administration from Hong Kong Polytechnic and the University of
East Asia respectively. He joined the Group in 1978 and before
that he had worked for two multinational semiconductor

companies for over 10 years.

Orasa Livasiri, Independent Non-executive Director, aged 50, was
appointed to the Board as an Independent Non-executive Director
in 1994. She is a solicitor in private practice and is a partner of
Messrs. Ng, Lie, Lai & Chan.

Tang Koon Hung, Eric, aged 60, is an Independent Non-executive
Director and has been a member of the Board since September
2004. Mr. Tang qualified as a Chartered Accountants in Canada
and is also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has worked in the fields of manufacturing,
banking, and public utilities with some major corporations both in
Canada and in Hong Kong. Graduated from the University of
Toronto, Mr. Tang holds a Bachelor degree in Industrial

Engineering and a Masters degree in Business Administration.
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Daurectors’ Report continued
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Directors continued

Lee Shiu Hung, Robert, Independent Non-executive Director,
aged 73, was appointed to the Board on 23 December 2004.
Mr. Lee is a Certified Public Accountant with over 40 years of
practical experience in auditing, accounting and finance, taxation
and general management. He was engaged in private practice in
the name of Robert S.H. Lee & Co., Certified Public Accountants
since 1984 until his retirement in 2000. Mr. Lee previously held
senior executive positions in multinational groups, including
Jardine Matheson & Co. Limited and Hutchison International
Limited. He was a President of the Society of Chinese Accountants
& Auditors, Hong Kong in 1983/84 and a President of the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants (CPA
Australia) Hong Kong Branch in 1986/87. He is a fellow member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, CPA
Australia; the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He is a
member of the Advisory Board of the Society of Chinese
Accountants & Auditors, Hong Kong.

Senior management

The Group’s senior management team consists of the following

executives, whose biographical information is as follows:

Lo Tsan Yin, Peter, aged 57, is the Managing Director of the
Northern Region. He has a Bachelor of Science degree in
Electronics Engineering from the University of Southampton,
England. Mr. Lo joined the Group in 1980. He has over 30 years
of experience in the computer and semiconductor industry.

Mr. Lo is responsible for managing the business operation of the
Group in the northern region of Asia, including Hong Kong,

Mainland China, Taiwan, Korea, Japan and Philippines.

Lee Wai Kwong, aged 51, is the Managing Director of the Southern
Region. He has a Bachelor of Science degree and a Masters of
Science degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong; both
degrees are in Electronics Engineering. He also has a Masters
degree in Business Administration from the National University of
Singapore. Mr. Lee joined the Group in 1980. He has over 25
years working experience in the semiconductor industry. Mr. Lee
is responsible for managing the business operation of the Group
in the southern region of Asia, including Singapore, Malaysia,
Thailand and India, as well as overseeing the Group’s European

and American activities.

36

TEBUIRTES) BELT=m RZZZE
NFE+_AZ+=HEZENAESZE - TELE AT
MEstam - RE - St RME BB —KRERS
BT F2EBRKES - BE— NN FUAEKREEE
MEZRBMANE  BEE_ZTZFRK - Fh4E
DREEERAGR  BEENMEERMEFTEER -
EESRITBAR - BR—NAN=ZFEZ\NFZET
BEREEANGHIAEERER —NANAAENLFE
EERNEHAMAEEESIGER - FTEERE B
SHAAE BMEHAMAE - RE Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators & & /& ‘A &
MEAGEREE - BB AEAGHASHN
ZEGKE -

E-&"’é‘ﬂ@

REBZEK ABBETIZITHRAE  EEH
ms

ERA BRFRA TR RAEEEMBEB - EEHE
KR RREREELERRBETFTIREELT BN o
EEER—NANZEFEMARER - FREM R FEE

THEER=+tFIEKR BELrHEBEETELEE
ATEMNIEB(BIERE PEKRE - & BE -

BARFRE) 25K -

FEX CBERT B RAKEENEBZES
BER - FRABBPXARBEFIRELREL
B - RIFHAMIMEEZ AR THERB L2 -

FEER-ANZEMAREER - WRFERITER
ER_THEFIEER FTELEBEEEAKER
MEE (BN - BREDE - FE - BE) A

R BN R e 2 37 -



Darectors” Report continued
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Senior management continued

Chow Chuen, James, aged 49, is the Managing Director of China
Operation. He has a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical
Engineering from the University of Hong Kong and a Masters of
Science degree in Manufacturing System Engineering from the
University of Warwick, England. Mr. Chow joined the Group in
1982. He has over 25 years working experience in the electronics
and semiconductor industry. Mr. Chow is responsible for

managing the manufacturing operations in Mainland China.

Liu Chou Kee, Peter, aged 63, is the Chief Technology Officer of the
Group. He has a Bachelor of Science degree and a Masters of
Science degree from the University of Manitoba, Canada, and
Doctor of Philosophy degree from the University of McMaster,
Canada. All the degrees are in Electronics Engineering. Mr. Liu
joined the Group in 1995. He has over 30 years working
experience in telecommunication, semiconductor industry and
tertiary education. Mr. Liu is responsible for managing the

research and development teams of the Group.

Employee Share Incentive Scheme

The Group has an Employee Share Incentive Scheme (the
“Scheme”) which is for the benefit of the Group’s employees and
members of management and has a life of 10 years starting from
December 1989. On 25 June 1999, at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company, the shareholders approved to extend
the period of the Scheme for a further term of 10 years up to

23 March 2010 and allow up to 5% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time, excluding any shares of the
Company subscribed for or purchased pursuant to the Scheme
since 23 March 1990, to be subscribed for or purchased pursuant
to the Scheme during the extended period.

0n 24 February 2005, the Directors resolved to contribute
HK$180,000 to the Scheme, enabling the trustees of the Scheme
to subscribe for a total of 1,800,000 shares in the Company for
the benefit of employees and members of the management

of the Group in respect of their services for the year ended

31 December 2004 upon expiration of the defined qualification
period. 205,000 of these share entitlements were allocated to
certain Directors.

On 21 February 2006, the Directors resolved to contribute
HK$180,000 to the Scheme, enabling the trustees of the Scheme
to subscribe for a total of 1,800,000 shares in the Company for the
benefit of employees and members of the management of the
Group in respect of their services for the year ended 31 December
2005 upon the expiration of a defined qualification period.
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Directors’ interests in shares EEROER

Details of the interests of the Directors and chief executives of the R -_ZEZERF+_A=+—8 REZFHFMHEK
Company and their associates in the share capital of the Company Il ([ ZEHI& B | ) FE352(6 78 F BT H E L METAL 8%

and its associated corporations as at 31 December 2005 as RIRE LM AR ESETESRINZETRGLAR
recorded in the register by the Company pursuant to Section 352 AIRBEBERSGABR AR ([BAM]) Q@ - K
of the Securities and Future Ordinance (the “SFO”), or as NABEFRITRAET AR HEE ARAR QT & HIGH
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of EEEBENARAEZET

Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies

were as follows:

Long positions R
(a) Shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company: (a) BB EE010T 2 AR ARG,
Percentage of
Number of shareholding in
Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
EEME 4% Frsh&fn FES ¥ /NG|
A f&HEE Dt
Arthur H. del Prado Arthur H. del Prado (Note 1) (MF&E1) 207,427,500 53.599%
Lam See Pong, Patrick (Note 2) ARED BE (Bt 5E2) Beneficial owner EmFAA 970,000 0.25%
Fung Shu Kan, Alan ISR Beneficial owner BE=FEA 191,000 0.05%
(b) Share options of ASM International: (Note 3) (b) ASM International Z 52 B& 42 : (ff5E3)
At 1 January Exercised At 31 December
Name of director Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price 2005  during the year 2005
EEME B E 171 11EE R-ZZZERE ERAFE RZZEZTREF
—HA—H ME +=A=+—8H
Arthur H. del Prado 19 December 2001 19 December 2002 - US$19.32 250,000 - 250,000
—ET—F+ZA+NB 19 December 2006 19.32% 7T
—EE-HF+-RTAEE
“EZRFT-ATAR
Lam See Pong, Patrick 4 April 2001 31 December 2001 - US$15.44 100,000 - 100,000
KRR B —EE-FPAMNA 4 April 2006 15.4437T
—ETEF+A=+—HZE
—EERFMNAMA
Fung Shu Kan, Alan 4 April 2001 31 December 2001 - US$15.44 7,000 - 7,000
IERIR —ZZ—FMAMA 4 April 2006 15.443% 7T
—ET—F+A=+—HZE
—EERFMNAMA
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Directors’ interests in shares continued

Notes:

1. As at 31 December 2005, Arthur H. del Prado, a member of his
immediate family and a foundation controlled by him together
held about 21.79% of the issued share capital of ASM
International. A wholly-owned subsidiary of ASM International,
Advanced Semiconductor Materials (Netherlands Antilles) N.V.
holds 207,427,500 shares of the Company as at 31 December
2005. Arthur H. del Prado is deemed or taken to be interested
in the 207,427,500 shares. ASM International also holds the
fixed-rate participating shares of ASM Assembly Automation
Limited, ASM Assembly Materials Limited and ASM Asia Limited
which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. These
shares carry no voting rights, no rights to participate in a
distribution of profits, and very limited rights on a return of

capital.

2. As at 31 December 2005, Lam See Pong, Patrick beneficially
owns 395,300 shares of ASM International.

3. Details of the share option scheme of ASM International are set

out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares
in subsidiaries held by the Directors in trust for the Company or
its subsidiaries, as at 31 December 2005, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company nor their associates had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares or debentures

Other than those rights described under the sub-section headed
“Employee Share Incentive Scheme” and the share options of ASM
International disclosed above, none of the Directors or chief
executives or their spouses or children under the age of 18 had
any right to subscribe for shares of the Company, or had exercised
any such right during the year; and at no time during the year was
the Company, any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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Daurectors’ Report continued
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Substantial shareholders

As at 31 December 2005, the following persons (other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of Director or chief executive
of the Company) had interests in the share capital of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

FERR

“ZEAFT-AZ+-8 BLAFEADH
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under Section 336 of the SFO:
Percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held in the Company
[y F1H T 5 I& 15 IS F YN
EgEl MiEE D
ASM International Corporate A A 207,427,500 53.59%
Advanced Semiconductor Materials Beneficial owner EmnfFEA 207,427,500 53.59%

(Netherlands Antilles) N.V

Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and its associates Investment manager B 19,400,000 5.01%

on behalf of accounts managed by Aberdeen
Asset Management Plc and its associates

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2005, according to
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, there was no person who had any
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company.

Directors’ interests in contracts and

connected transactions

During the year, the Group entered into certain transactions with
the ASM International group of companies, details of which are

set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company confirmed
that the connected transactions have been entered into by the
Group in the ordinary and usual course of business, on normal
commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms of the
agreement governing such transactions that are fair and
reasonable and in the interest of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

Arthur H. del Prado has interest in ASM International as disclosed
in sub-section headed “Directors’ interests in shares” above.

Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the
Company, any of its holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Darectors” Report continued

R

Directors’ service contracts

No Director of the Company has a service contract with any
company in the Group which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation (other than

statutory compensation).

Emolument policy
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the management on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and the senior management of
the Company are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance

and comparable market statistics.

The Company currently had an Employee Share Incentive Scheme
as an incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of the

scheme is set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association although there are no
restrictions against such rights under the laws in the Cayman
Islands.

Major customers and suppliers

The aggregate sales attributable to the five largest customers of
the Group were less than 30% of the Group’s turnover for the year

under review.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers
of the Group were less than 30% of the Group’s purchases for the

year under review.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations

amounting to approximately HK$506,000.
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Daurectors’ Report continued
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Appointment of Independent Non-executive
Directors

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of the independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.
The Company considers all of the Independent Non-executive

Directors are independent.

sufficiency of public float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2005.

Auditors

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the

Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lam See Pong, Patrick

Director

21 February 2006
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Corporate Governance Report
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The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate
governance to the Company'’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identify and formalize the best corporate
governance practices appropriate to the needs of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (“Principles”) and the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”). The Company
has complied with most of the Code Provisions save for the Code
Provisions on internal controls which are to be implemented for
accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2005 pursuant
to the (G Code and certain deviations from the Code Provisions in
respect of Code Provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2 and Code Provision
E.1.2, details of which are explained below. The Company
periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure
that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board of
Directors (“Board”) in ensuring effective leadership and control of
the Company and transparency and accountability of all

operations.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the

Company are summarised as follows:

The Board
RESPONSIBILITIES

The Company has formalised and adopted the written terms on
the division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to

the management.

The day-to-day operations of the Company are delegated to
the management while the Board provides leadership and
approves strategic policies and plans with a view to enhance

shareholder interests.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including: objectives and overall strategies of the
Company; annual budgets and financial matters; internal control
and risk management systems; equity related transactions such as
issue of shares/options, repurchase of shares, dividend, raising of
capital loan; determination of major business strategy; merger
and acquisition; disposal of business unit; major investment;
annual financial budget in turnover, profitability and capital
expenditure; review and approval of financial performance and
announcement; and matters as required by laws and ordinance.
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The Board continued

RESPONSIBILITIES CONTINUED

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules

and regulations are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,

upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are delegated to the Managing Director (who is also
the Chief Executive Officer) and the senior management. The
delegated functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed.
Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned

officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive Officer and

the senior management to discharge its responsibilities.

COMPOSITION

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its

business needs.
The Board of the Company comprises the following directors:

Executive Directors
Arthur H. del Prado (Chairman of the Board and

Remuneration Committee)

Lam See Pong, Patrick (Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer)

Fung Shu Kan, Alan (Financial Director)
Non-Executive Director

Arnold J. M. van der Ven (Appointment effective on
14 March 2006)
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The Board continued
COMPOSITION CONTINUED

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Orasa Livasiri (Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of

Remuneration Committee)

Tang Koon Hung, Eric (Member of Audit Committee and

Remuneration Committee)

Lee Shiu Hung, Robert (Member of Audit Committee and

Remuneration Committee)

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2005, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the

Listing Rules.

The non-executive directors together have substantial experience
in fields of auditing, legal matters, business, accounting, corporate
internal control and regulatory affairs. Through active
participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing
issues involving potential conflict of interests and serving on
Board committees, all non-executive directors make various

contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

APPOINTMENT AND SUCCESSION PLANNING OF DIRECTORS

The Board as a whole is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures
for nomination and appointment of directors, monitoring the
appointment and succession planning of directors and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive directors. The
Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition regularly
to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience

appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company.
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The Board continued
APPOINTMENT AND SUCCESSION PLANNING OF
DIRECTORS CONTINUED

The Chairman and the Managing Director (also being the Chief
Executive Officer) are responsible for the selection and
recommendation of candidates for directorship of the Company by
making reference to the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. Mr. Arnold J. M. van der
Ven was selected and recommended for directorship during the
year whose appointment as a non-executive director was

formalised and effective on 14 March 2006.

The Company has not yet adopted Code Provision A.4.1 which
provides that non-executive directors should be appointed for a
specific term, subject to re-election. All the non-executive
directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term
although in practice they are subject to retirement on rotation and
re-election at the Company’s annual general meetings pursuant to
the Company’s Articles of Association. In accordance with Article
113 of the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the
directors (save for the Managing Director), or if their number is
not three nor a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
one-third but not exceeding one-third, shall retire from office and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at annual general
meetings. As the Company had a total of six directors, Messrs
Arthur H. del Prado, Lam See Pong, Patrick, Fung Shu Kan, Alan,
Tang Koon Hung, Eric and Lee Shiu Hung, Robert and Miss Orasa
Livasiri during the year ended 31 December 2005 (Mr. Arnold J. M.
van der Ven was appointed on 14 March 2006) which is a multiple
of three, and in practice, the Company’s Managing Director, also
being an Executive Director, has also been subject to retirement
by rotation at annual general meetings, all directors are subject to

retirement by rotation once every three years.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at

the first general meeting after their appointment. Every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to

retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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The Board continued
APPOINTMENT AND SUCCESSION PLANNING OF
DIRECTORS CONTINUED

In accordance with Article 117 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, any new director appointed by the Board during the
year shall hold office until the next following annual general
meeting after appointment, when he/she shall be eligible for
re-election. Mr. Arnold J. M. van der Ven was appointed as an
additional director by the Board on 14 March 2006 and he shall
retire and offer himself for re-election by shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to this Article.

In addition, Messrs Lam See Pong, Patrick and Fung Shu Kan, Alan
shall retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant
to Article 113.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

In order to ensure full compliance of the Company’s Articles of
Association with Code Provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2 of the (G Code,
a special resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to amend the Company’s
Articles of Association so that all directors will be subject to
retirement by rotation once every three years and any new
director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall be subject to
re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS
Each newly appointed director receives comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her

appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate

understanding of the business and operations of the Company and

that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities and
obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory

requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to directors whenever
necessary.
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The Board continued
BOARD MEETINGS
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Seven Board meetings were held during the year.

The individual attendance (either in person or through other

electronic means of communication) record of each director at the

EFEs
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ARRARFERNBITT L REFEEH -

TRFVNEBEE-ZZRFT_A=1T—BLFE @
NEEREFE - %Méﬂaﬁéﬁéﬁﬁm &

meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee and the sk (e NiEs MEREHEER) -
Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December 2005 is set
out below:
Attendance/ Number of Meetings
HERE 8 FE R

Remuneration Audit
Directors Board Committee Committee
BEx4E BExg FMEE® EZERE
Executive Directors HITEFE
Arthur H. del Prado (Chairman of the Board and Arthur H. del Prado 4/7 1/1 N/A
Remuneration Committee) (EEgXRERFMNEZEGER)
Lam See Pong, Patrick (Managing Director and HRED B 5/7 N/A N/A
Chief Executive Officer) (BESREBERITIREHR)
Fung Shu Kan, Alan (Financial Director) IR (S ESE) 7/7 N/A N/A
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUIFHTEE
Orasa Livasiri (Chairman of Audit Committee) Orasa Livasin (BZZ 2 €% %) 6/7 1/1 6/6
Tang Koon Hung, Eric B 1 6/7 1/1 6/6
Lee Shiu Hung, Robert EPY 6/7 1/1 6/6

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at
least 14 days before the meetings while reasonable notice is
generally given for other board meetings. For committee
meetings, notices are served in accordance with the required

notice period stated in the relevant terms of reference.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or to the relevant committee
members at least 2 days before each Remuneration Committee
Meeting or at least 4 days before each Audit Committee meeting
to keep the directors apprised of the latest developments and
financial position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. The Board and each director also have
separate and independent access to the senior management

whenever necessary.
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The Board continued
BOARD MEETINGS CONTINUED

Practices and Conduct of Meetings continued

Minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings are kept
by the Company Secretary. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to directors for comment within a reasonable time after each

meeting and the final version is open for directors” inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a
duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles of
Association also contain provisions requiring directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such directors or any of their

associates have a material interest.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
The Company fully supports the division of responsibility between
the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer to

ensure a balance of power and authority.

The positions of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are
held by Mr. Arthur H. del Prado and Mr. Lam See Pong, Patrick
(who is also the Managing Director) respectively. Their respective

responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice. With the support of the senior
management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that
the directors receive adequate, complete and reliable information
in a timely manner and appropriate briefing on issues arising at

Board meetings.

The Chief Executive Officer, supported by the executive directors,
is responsible for managing the Group’s business, including
implementation of objectives, policies and major strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board.
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Board Committees

The Board has established two committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and are

available to shareholders upon request.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate

circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Arthur H. del Prado is the chairman while all the three
independent non-executive directors are the members of the

Remuneration Committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
establishing a formal and transparent procedure for setting policy
on the remuneration of the executive directors and for fixing the
remuneration packages of all directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for ensuring the remuneration packages are sufficient to attract
and retain the directors needed to run the Company successfully;
to avoid over-paying and ensure no director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market

practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets towards the end of
each year for reviewing the remuneration policy and structure and
determination of the annual remuneration packages of the
executive directors and other related matters. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company about these recommendations on

remuneration policy, structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended
31 December 2005 and reviewed the remuneration policy and

packages of the executive directors for the year under review.
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Board Committees continued
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-
executive directors (including two independent non-executive
directors who possess the appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise) and
Ms. Orasa Livasiri is the chairman of the committee. None of the
members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the

Company’s existing external auditors.
The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the qualified
accountant or external auditors before submission to
the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of

external auditors.

(c) To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk

management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held six meetings with the Financial Director
during the year ended 31 December 2005 to review the financial
results and reports; financial controls, internal controls and risk
management systems; and the re-appointment of the external
auditors. The Company’s annual results for the year ended

31 December 2005 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

There is no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or

dismissal of the external auditors.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as

set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and the
directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31st December, 2005.

The Company also has established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive

information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written

Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.

Responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements and auditors’ remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required

under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2005.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Report of the Auditors” on page 54.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended
31 December 2005 amounted to HK$4,327,000 and HK$2,151,000

respectively.

Shareholder rights and investor relations

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding a
poll on resolutions at shareholders” meetings are contained in the
Company’s Articles of Association. Details of such rights and
procedures are included in all circulars to shareholders and will be
explained during the proceedings of meetings. Whenever voting
by way of a poll is required, the detailed procedures for

conducting a poll will be explained.

52

ETEFXSNEETL
ARARBRA LRI WS EPRFTAREE
RS OEETR ([EETA]) -
AAFBHRRESEHARSH  MEEERR
BE-STRE+-A=t+-ALEERYRT
EE ST

ARRNEHREHEEEEEFFTHEREEMEIES
(MREEmES)  HRF T RETH RS -
FHEERTVESHEAERARANRRRKREHE
BERONES -
ARRAEHREEAERETETEEZE@IES/] °

ARANMBRROEEREBETNE

EXgRETE BWEABHABRRARZFER
THRE PERREFREHMZAMERELTR
AR EMEERERERTRENEMMBER -

EXZCHRAALREBE_TTRF T _A=1T—H
HFEFBHRERNEL -

ARARSNEZBE DR T H R E54H 2 (R AR &)
A PIW R HEEIEL R -

BE_FTRAFT_A=+—HLFE A2FY
SN BEN R B RIEBRRG M ST D AR
7 #4,327,0007T &2 /8 % 2,151,0007T °

BREHRREEME

BRI BRI R ERERRAGURES RERRD
RFCHINAR 2 AHBERMA - BHEFREF
MFEBETRIIRAAREBEAR - LS ESHHH
RE - SEARBURTEFRARARE  HERERE

TR -



Corporate Governance Report continued

e S/ S |

Shareholder rights and investor relations
continued

Poll results will be published in newspapers on the business day
following the shareholders” meeting and posted on the websites
of the Company and of the Stock Exchange.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board.
Although the Chairman of the Board has not attended the 2005
annual general meeting of the Company (which is deviated from
Code Provision E.1.2) during his absence in Hong Kong, the
Managing Director (who is also the Chief Executive Officer) has
chaired the meeting and answered questions at the meeting.
The chairman of the Audit Committee was also available to
answer questions thereat.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders” meetings
on each substantial issue, including the election of individual
directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintain reqular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments. Enquiries
from investors are dealt with in an informative and timely

manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains
a website at asmpacific.com, where extensive information and
updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other

information are posted.
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Auditors’ Report
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To the Shareholders of ASM Pacific Technology Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ASM
Pacific Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries on
pages 55 to 102 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and Auditors
The Company’s Directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair
view. In preparing consolidated financial statements which give
a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on
our audit, on those financial statements and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgments made by the Directors in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, and of whether the
accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of
the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information
in the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2005 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group
for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 February 2006
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Consolidated Income Statement
ARG W BE A

For the year ended 31 December 2005
HE-_ZZRAF+-_A=+—HILFE

Notes 2005 2004

P 5 —EELE ZEEMEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT T

Turnover B 6 3,536,855 3,828,930
Cost of sales 5 E A (1,926,077) (2,097,617)
Gross profit E 1,610,778 1,731,313
Other income H e 2= 21,283 9,278
Selling expenses HE B M (316,950) (291,733)
General and administrative expenses —MREZER (143,534) (123,876)
Research and development expenses, net MRERERFZH 8 (267,638) (262,585)
Finance costs W EA 9 (15) (15)
Profit before taxation Fr 5 Bl & A 903,924 1,062,382
Income tax expense FT 15 %1 b 2 10 (53,439) (59,787)
Profit for the year N S5 11 850,485 1,002,595
Dividends % 2 15 772,865 788,002

Earnings per share B F 16

— Basic — HK HK$2.21 HK$2.61
221 2,617

— Diluted — s HK$2.20 HK$2.60
R 2.207T PEH2.607T
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

R B EAMEAR

At 31 December 2005

R-ZEERF+=-_A=+—8H

Notes 2005 2004
P 5 —EF¥LE —EETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WER&E 17 808,030 772,006
Prepaid lease payments ENHEEER 18 8,951 9,370
Deferred tax assets FRERIEEE 25 118 1,999
817,099 783,375
Current assets RENEE
Inventories rE 19 609,345 554,830
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H th ' U BR 50 20 892,255 642,223
Prepaid lease payments ENHESER 18 448 446
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 728,927 763,359
2,230,975 1,960,858
Current liabilities RENE &
Trade and other payables B 5 & H A BT BR 3K 21 585,020 461,284
Taxation J& A~ 5 I8 66,101 103,099
Notes payable to a bank FERRITREE 22 462 —
651,583 564,383
Net current assets RHEEFEE 1,579,392 1,396,475
2,396,491 2,179,850
Capital and reserves BERRGEE
Share capital % 2 23 38,706 38,527
Dividend reserve % B fE 503,177 404,532
Other reserves H % & 1,851,651 1,734,406
Equity attributable to equity BATERR
holders of the parent AANEILERS 2,393,534 2,177,465
Non-current liabilities kRnBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FEEMREEE 25 2,957 2,385
2,396,491 2,179,850
The consolidated financial statements on pages 55 to 102 were FSSEEFINEZHEAVBERRERZZEN
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on FAZT " REEESHEEM AhTIE

21 February 2006 and are signed on its behalf by:

Arthur H. del Prado
Director

Lam See Pong, Patrick
Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
f I RN 2z 52 ) 76

For the year ended 31 December 2005

HE-_ZZRAF+-_A=+—HILFE
Attributable to equity holders of the parent
BRABERAAEEER
Employee
share-based Capital
Share Share compensation  redemption Capital ~ Translation ~ Retained  Dividend
capital  premium reserve reserve  feserve reserve profits  reserve Total
PARR 1A S 1489 ER \
kA BREARE BEMeRE - BOREE ALHG EARE ZBEN BREEE an
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000  HK$’000
BETT BBTr A¥Tr  BETr A%Tr A¥Tr BE%Tn AT AT
At 1 January 2004 RZEENE
-A—H 38502 126,528 - — 0944 (72543) 1428656 323,415 1,915,502
Exchange differenceson A E G EE

translation of foreign RAEER

operations 8 - - - - - 8,558 - - 8558
Profit for the year AE R - - - - - — 1,002,595 — 1,002,595
Total recognised income and A & £ 1.2

expense for the year U3t - - - - - 8,558 1,002,595 — 1,011,153
sub-total N 38502 126,528 - — 0944 (63,985) 2431251 323415 2,926,655
Shares issued under the 1R & E B R {7

Employee Share Incentive ~ Z2B) /& %

Scheme 12 K&H 180 - - - - - - - 180
Repurchase of shares B8 2 & 17 (155) - - 155 - - (155) - (155)
Premium paid on repurchase [B1 88 7 f& {3 2

of shares BEREE - (42,330) - - - - - - (42,330)
Interim dividend declared ~ E % H Hfk & - - - - - - (172,561) 172,561 -
Special dividend declared B E 45 Bl AR B - - - - - - (210909) 210,909 -
Final dividend proposed BRARSE - - - - - —  (404,532) 404,532 -
Dividends paid BIRATRE - - - - - - —  (706,885) (706,885)
At 31 December 2004 and R -ZEEE

1 January 2005 T-A=+-H

RZEETE
-A-H 3857 84198 - 155 70944 (63985) 1643094 404,532 2,177,465
Exchange differenceson A E G EE

translation of foreign RAEER

operations =8 - - - - - (17,150) - - (17,150)
Profit for the year RNEFRR - - - - - — 850,485 — 850,485
Total recognised income and A F EEHR 2

expense for the year U3 L - - - - - (17,150) 850,485 — 833335
Sub-total INEF 38,527 84,198 - 155 70,944 (81,135) 2,493,579 404,532 3,010,800
Recognition of equity-settled B EREE 2

share based payments RO S AL - - 56,954 - - - - — 56,954
Shares issued under the REEERD

Employee Share Incentive ~ Z2 B & %

Scheme 125 179 56,775 (56,954) - - - - - -
Interim dividend declared & % R H1 R &, - - - - - —  (192,634) 192,634 -
First special dividend EEER

declared BRI & - - - - - —  (77,54) 77,054 -
Second special dividend ~ EZEE X
proposed RIAR 5 - - - - - - (116,118) 116,118 -
Final dividend proposed BERBRE - - - - - - (387,059) 387,059 -
Dividends paid ERE - - - - - - —  (674,220) (674,220)
At 31 December 2005 R-ZZZLF
ToA=+-H 38706 140973 - 155 70944 (817135) 1720714 503,177 2,393,534
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
ZR G Bl i B B

For the year ended 31 December 2005

BE_ZZERF T A=+ HLFE

Note 2005 2004
B 5 —EFTLE —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Operating activities BEEH
Profit before taxation B 75 Bl & A 903,924 1,062,382
Adjustments for: S
Depreciation e 154,445 182,114
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BE R
and equipment B EE 3,551 32,247
Amortisation of prepaid ENHESER
lease payments i 448 —
Share-based payment REEBERND
under the Employee BB E 2 LA
Share Incentive Scheme Bt 2 14 B9 X 56,954 180
Interest income MEMKA (15,025) (7,923)
Interest expense e 15 15
Operating cash flows before movements in AtEEERZ
working capital LEBEEMNE 1,104,312 1,269,015
Increase in inventories FE 2N (57,586) (23,714)
(Increase) decrease in trade and B 5 N B FE W BR K
other receivables 2 (HEn) 5 g (255,781) 104,749
Increase (decrease) in trade and B 5 Kk E A &R BR K
other payables Z 380 (Rl E8) 124,881 (31,653)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXRFEHERR
on inter-company balances NRIEESR & (6,400) 2,864
Cash generated from operations BEMESCRS 909,426 1,321,261
Income taxes paid S EB (88,124) (33,557)
Interest paid XA FLE (15) (15)
Net cash from operating activities EEESHEHRSEAN 821,287 1,287,689
Investing activities REIEH
Interest received F B WA 15,025 7,923
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWmE - f% &L
and equipment Ffr 13 513 584 865
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EBEY % . Jﬁ% &L (194,848) (299,779)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —FE B8 A /) 26 - 1,730
Net cash used in investing activities BEEBZERE2XTH (179,239) (289,261)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement continued
WEB s BB FE

2005 2004
—EELE —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Financing activities RIEIEE
Dividends paid kA A% B (674,220) (706,885)
Notes payable to a bank FERTERTT IR 462 —
Repurchase of shares Bl §& 2 B& 17 - (42,485)
Net cash used in financing activities RIEEBEZEREXH (673,758) (749,370)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and RekBaER2
cash equivalents ORUEE) 150 (31,710) 249,058
Cash and cash equivalents at FOzRER
beginning of the year Resa 763,359 513,078
Effect of foreign exchange SIS T 2 48 B 5| B
rate changes ZHE (2,722) 1,223
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year, &R ZHE RIINLSZH -
represented by bank balances and cash BRTEBRIRSE 728,927 763,359
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B % # % W &t

For the year ended 31 December 2005
HE-_ZZRAF+-_A=+—HILFE

1.

60

General

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its
parent and ultimate holding company is ASM International
N.V. (“ASM International”), a company incorporated in the
Netherlands. The address of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the

corporate information of the annual report.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars

which is the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Its
principal subsidiaries are engaged in the design, manufacture
and marketing of machines, tools and materials used in

semiconductor industry.

. Application of Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
a number of new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and
Interpretations (“INT”) (hereinafter collectively referred to as
“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005. The application
of the new HKFRSs has resulted in a change in the
presentation of the consolidated income statement,
consolidated balance sheet and consolidated statement of
changes in equity. The changes in presentation have been
applied retrospectively. The adoption of the new HKFRSs has
resulted in changes to the Group’s accounting policies in the
following areas that have an effect on how the results for the
current or prior accounting periods are prepared and

presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued
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2.

61

Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards continued
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 2 “Share-
based Payment” (“HKFRS 2”) which requires an expense to be
recognised where the Group buys goods or obtains services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares (“equity-settled
transactions”), or in exchange for other assets equivalent in
value to a given number of shares or rights over shares
(“cash-settled transactions”). The principal impact of HKFRS 2
on the Group is in relation to the expensing of the fair value of
the shares of the Company granted to the directors and
employees under the Employee Share Incentive Scheme

(the “Scheme”), which are calculated with reference to the
market value of shares at the date of grant, over the vesting
period. Prior to the application of HKFRS 2, the costs on the
Scheme are recognised as expenses with reference to the

nominal value of shares issued under the Scheme.

Following the adoption of HKFRS 2, the costs on the Scheme
are calculated with reference to the fair value of shares at the
date of grant, adjusted to take into account the terms and
conditions upon which the shares are granted, and are
amortised over the relevant vesting period to the income

statement.

The Group has applied HKFRS 2 to shares granted on or after

1 January 2005. In relation to shares granted before 1 January
2005, the Group has not applied HKFRS 2 to shares granted

on or before 7 November 2002 and shares granted after

7 November 2002 and vested before 1 January 2005 in
accordance with the relevant transitional provisions. The
Group had no shares granted after 7 November 2002 and had
not yet vested on 1 January 2005 and accordingly no
retrospective restatement is required.

However, the adoption of HKFRS 2 has had a significant
impact on the results of operations and financial position of
the Group for accounting periods beginning on 1 January
2005. An amount of HK$56,954,000 representing the
estimated fair value of shares granted in February 2005 under
the Scheme was charged to the income statement during the
year, with an corresponding increase in share capital of
HK$179,000 and other reserve of HK$56,775,000.
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2. Application of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In the current year, the Group has applied HKAS 32 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” (“HKAS 32”)

and HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” (“HKAS 39”). HKAS 32 requires retrospective
application. HKAS 39, which is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2005, generally does not
permit the recognition, derecognition or measurement of
financial assets and liabilities on a retrospective basis. The
application of HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 has had no material
impact on how financial instruments of the Group are

presented for current and prior accounting periods.

OWNER-OCCUPIED LEASEHOLD INTEREST IN LAND

In previous years, owner-occupied leasehold land and
buildings were included in property, plant and equipment and
measured using the cost model. In the current year, the
Group has applied HKAS 17 “Leases” (“HKAS 17”). Under
HKAS 17, the land and buildings elements of a lease of land
and buildings are considered separately for the purposes of
lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and buildings elements,
in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as a
finance lease. To the extent that the allocation of the lease
payments between the land and buildings elements can be
made reliably, the leasehold interests in land are reclassified
to prepaid lease payments under operating leases, which are
carried at cost and amortised over the lease term on a straight
line basis. This change in accounting policy has been applied
retrospectively. The unamortised prepaid lease payment for
property interest in land has been separately shown in the

consolidated balance sheet.
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. Application of Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards continued

The Group has not early applied the following new standards
and interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective. The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these Standards or Interpretations will have no

material impact on the financial statements of the Group.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital disclosures’

HKAS 19 (Amendment) Actuarial gains and losses,

group plans and disclosures 2

HKAS 21 (Amendment) Net investment in a foreign

operation 2

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Cash flow hedge accounting
of forecast intragroup

transactions 2

HKAS 39 (Amendment) The fair value option 2

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4
(Amendments)

Financial guarantee
contracts 2

HKFRS 6 Exploration for and evaluation

of mineral resources 2

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:

Disclosures !

HK(IFRIC) - INT 4 Determining whether
an arrangement contains a

lease 2

HK(IFRIC) - INT 5 Rights to interests arising
from decommissioning,
restoration and environmental

rehabilitation funds?

HK(IFRIC) - INT 6 Liabilities arising from
participating in a specific
market - waste electrical and

electronic equipment?

HK(IFRIC) - INT 7 Applying the restatement
approach under HKAS 29
Financial Reporting in

Hyperinflationary Economies*

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 December 2005.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2006.
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3. Significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values at initial
recognition, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. All inter-
company transactions and balances within the Group have
been eliminated on consolidation.

The results of subsidiaries acquired and disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
and up to their effective dates of acquisition and disposal

respectively.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and

the title has been passed.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration

received or receivable less returns.

Management service fee income is recognised when

management services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount.
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significant accounting policies continued
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the

straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising from derecognition of the asset is determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and is included in the income

statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENDITURE

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense

in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated
that the development costs incurred on a clearly-defined
project will be recovered through future commercial activity.
The resultant asset is amortised on a straight line basis over its
useful life and carried at cost less subsequent accumulated

amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants received as subsidy for the Group’s
research and development activities are recognised in the
same period as those expenses are charged in the income

statement and are deducted in reporting the related expenses.
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significant accounting policies continued
IMPAIRMENT

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying

amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its

recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have

been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and it
further excludes income statement items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that

affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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3. Significant accounting policies continued
TAXATION CONTINUED

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available

to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
is charged or credited to the income statement, except when
it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in

which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets concerned to the Group. All other
leases are classified as operating leases and rental payable are
charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over
the term of the relevant leases. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expenses over the lease

terms on a straight line basis.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
balance sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables, deposits and bank balances) are
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence
that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Impairment losses are reversed in
subsequent periods when an increase in the asset’s
recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to a
restriction that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities, including bank borrowings and
trade and other payables, are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. Significant accounting policies continued
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED

Derecognition continued

For financial liabilities, they are removed from the Group’s
balance sheet when, and only when they are extinguished
(i.e. when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires). The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the

consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing on the

balance sheet date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Group’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in equity in the consolidated financial statements

(if any).

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised as a separate component of equity
(the translation reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign

operation is disposed of.
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significant accounting policies continued
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the shares granted to the directors and
employees of the Group under the Scheme, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair value
of shares granted at the date of grant and is expensed on a
straight line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (employee share-based

compensation reserve).

At the time when the shares are subsequently issued, the
amount previously recognised in the employee share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to share capital and

share premium.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The retirement benefit costs charged to the income statement
represent the contribution payable in respect of the current
year to the Group’s defined contribution retirement schemes,
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and Mandatory

Provident Fund Scheme.

Critical accounting judgment and key
sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, management had made the
following judgments that have the most significant effect on

the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

INVENTORIES

Note 3 describes that inventories are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The cost of finished goods and
work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of

business, less the estimated costs of selling expenses.

FEEBRS

DRHBZAHZHRES

AR REEERNEBDHIERTEEEERERZ
Bty SREMAREIREZ A FEEBRERTEZERNA
FREMHE NEBHABUEGEEHEAR X IE
LgmERESE ABRNDXNOEEMSFHE) -

BERMBEEETR  ERNEAROINHEENS
REEAZEECERERARBAEE -

B EFIGHE
BWERTHRZEREBNRAEAEERANFEEH
RERE S FORIRGT 8] - B B BRI A8 A 5t 81 e ok il 1%
RIESF BN ZHK -

REtET A R ETTRER R
EBRR

BORE A SR B B AT BOR (WM B SR B
EREEU TR BRRFERR I WEEE
ALY HIH -

rE

I EEEMAF E IR A B BRI FERE
ZREBEAR - BEGmRERMOKARERTE -
EEAT  HEEXRAREBENEELEER -
AERFERAEEREBBBENMGIT 2HEERS
NBREEBRZAEFRA -



Notes to the Financial Statements continued

5 A M At A

4.

71

Critical accounting judgment and key
sources of estimation uncertainty
continued

INVENTORIES CONTINUED

The Group has the operational procedures to put in place to
monitor the risk of inventories as majority of working capital
is devoted to inventories and the nature of inventories are
subject to frequent technological changes. The management
reviews inventory age listing on a periodical basis for those
slow-moving inventories. This involves comparison of carrying
value of the aged inventory items with the respective net
realisable value. The purpose is to ascertain whether
allowance is required to be made in the financial statements
for any obsolete and slow-moving items. In addition, physical
count on all inventories are carried out on a periodical basis in
order to determine whether allowance need to be made in
respect of any obsolete and defective inventories identified.
In this regard, the directors of the Company are satisfied that
this risk is minimal and adequate allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventories has been made in the financial

statements.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Note 3 describes that trade receivables are measured at initial
recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts
are recognised in profit and loss when there is objective

evidence that the asset is impaired.

In making the judgment, management considered detailed
procedures have been in place to monitor this risk as a
significant proportion of the Group’s working capital is
devoted to trade receivables. In determining whether
allowance for bad and doubtful debts is required, the Group
takes into consideration the ageing status and the likelihood
of collection. Following the identification of doubtful debts,
the responsible sales personnel discuss with the relevant
customers and report on the recoverability. Specific allowance
is only made for trade receivables that are unlikely to be
collected. In this regard, the directors of the Company are
satisfied that this risk is minimal and adequate allowance for
doubtful debts has been made in the financial statements in
light of the historical records of the Group and the
circumstances of the semiconductor manufacturing industry as

a whole.
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5.
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Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables and trade payables. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

CURRENCY RISK

The Group has minimal currency exposure as the majority of
all sales were denominated in U.S. Dollars which are linked up
with Hong Kong Dollars. On the other hand, the
disbursements were mainly in U.S. dollars, Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi, which are the functional currency of the
relevant subsidiaries. The currency risk of some limited
Japanese Yen-based receivables were eliminated against some
Japanese Yen accounts payables. The management conducted
periodical review of exposure and requirements of various
currencies, and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposures should the need arises.

CREDIT RISK

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at

31 December 2005 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated balance sheet. In order to minimise
the credit risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a number of counterparties and

customers.

. Turnover

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable for

goods sold to customers during the year and less returns.
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7. Business and geographical segments

(A) BUSINESS SEGMENTS

For management purposes, the Group is currently

organised into two operating divisions —

equipment and leadframe. These divisions are the

basis on which the Group reports its primary

segment information.

Principal activities are as follows:

Equipment — manufacture and marketing of
semiconductor machines and tools

Leadframe — manufacture and marketing of

semiconductor materials

(i) Segment information about these businesses

EBRBESE

() B S E

AEBHE  AEERESRAALES
Py — R RBIBIESR
A2 REESFARNZ LA -

TBEKA

% — BEREELERE
RERTA

BlRIER — WERBELERYH

° A‘Z%’DBF%E$K§

(DHE-_FTTAF+_A=+T—"HLFE

for the year ended 31 December 2005 is presented B ZEHHDEERZ7WT -
below:
Income statement [gd S
HK$'000
BT T
Turnover =
Equipment B 2,864,384
Leadframe S| 4RAELR 672,471
3,536,855
Result ES
Equipment B 779,358
Leadframe Sl fFHELE 109,556
888,914
Interest income FLE WA 15,025
Finance costs B 5 A (15)
Profit before taxation F& B4 Bl i A 903,924
Income tax expense FTiS i & (53,439)
Profit for the year ANF 850,485
Balance sheet BEABMER
Equipment Leadframe Consolidated
B 5| 4R AE 5 foey
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 1,805,362 464,732 2,270,094
Unallocated corporate assets ANDBEZRREE 777,980
Consolidated total assets A BELRE 3,048,074
Liabilities =i
Segment liabilities nEEE 484,570 99,036 583,606
Unallocated corporate liabilities Koz relgE 70,934
Consolidated total liabilities e BBELRE 654,540
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7. Business and geographical segments ¥ RMENHEE

continued
e
(A) BUSINESS SEGMENTS CONTINUED () RBIEE
Other information Hip&EH
Equipment Leadframe Consolidated
B 5| R HE SR oy
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Capital additions BERE 119,569 75,279 194,848
Depreciation of property, W - BER
plant and equipment BB E 111,770 42,675 154,445
Amortisation of prepaid ENEEER
lease payments o 112 336 448
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment HEERE 3,549 2 3,551

(i) Segment information about these businesses (DEE—ZZNF+_A=+—HIF
for the year ended 31 December 2004 is presented EEMZ XBDEERZH|MAT ¢

below:
Income statement W 25 3R =
HK$’000
BT T
Turnover B
Equipment B 3,252,042
Leadframe Sl 4Rz L 576,888
3,828,930
Result B
Equipment e} 992,139
Leadframe Sl 4RIEZR 62,335
1,054,474
Interest income FLEWA 7,923
Finance costs B & A (15)
Profit before taxation G 0p % 1,062,382
Income tax expense Fris R f & (59,787)
Profit for the year ANEE 1,002,595
Balance sheet BEABER
Equipment Leadframe Consolidated
B 5| R HE SR Foey
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Assets BE
Segment assets DEEE 1,578,976 292,517 1,871,493
Unallocated corporate assets ANBEZAREBE 872,740
Consolidated total assets REEBERBS 2,744,233
Liabilities af&
Segment liabilities o Eb & fE 381,316 79,339 460,655
Unallocated corporate liabilities Koz AR&EE 106,113
Consolidated total liabilities reBaEes 566,768

74



Notes to the Financial Statements continued

B 5 A Wt A

7. Business and geographical segments (M RMEDHEE
continued
(A) BUSINESS SEGMENTS CONTINUED (F)RBIEE
Other information Hith &F
Equipment Leadframe Consolidated
B Sl 4RHELR A
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BT T BT T BT T
Capital additions BESE 231,568 68,211 299,779
Depreciation of property, ME - BB R
plant and equipment REITE 115,354 66,760 182,114
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BER
plant and equipment REER 32,060 187 32,247

(B) GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

The Group’s operations are principally carried out
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
including Hong Kong and Mainland China,

Singapore and Malaysia.

(i) An analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit

(Z) iE58E
AEBEZEBETEHEPEARKM

E(FE]) BEEERTENE.

FONAE e FH R EE o

—

) AREZ EXB RGBS T

before taxation by location of operations is REBWESNOT :

as follows:
Turnover Profit before taxation
wEHE B B A1 A
2005 2004 2005 2004
—ETRE —TTNMHE —ETRE —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETRT BE¥Tr
Location of operation HEBE
The PRC e 1,859,197 1,992,532 508,725 549,981
Singapore and Malaysia s & 1,677,658 1,836,398 380,189 504,493
FRADR
3,536,855 3,828,930 888,914 1,054,474
Interest income F B A 15,025 7,923
Finance costs B 75 A (15) (15)
Profit before taxation F& B4 Bl i F 903,924 1,062,382
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7. Business and geographical segments

76

continued

(B) GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS CONTINUED
(i) A geographical breakdown of the Group’s

EBRHMESEE

(L) BESEE
(D AREEZE2XBRT SR DR

turnover by geographical market is as follows: My mr
2005 2004
—EFRE —ZTTNEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Location of market gt E
Mainland China B K R 774,972 742,272
Taiwan =) 742,304 850,975
Malaysia BRI 445,371 539,390
Korea [ 322,805 222,670
Hong Kong BB 256,515 281,008
Philippines ERE 255,488 335,571
Thailand B0 246,546 280,609
Singapore #n 150,068 197,768
United States of America and ERRNT
Latin America EM 147,741 204,795
Europe BOM 107,325 66,302
Japan [EN 45,790 55,445
Others Hh 41,930 52,125
3,536,855 3,828,930

(i) The following is an analysis of the carrying

amount of segment assets, and additions to

SURTREEREEMRLER DT Z
DREBEERMERDE  BWENMRHE

property, plant and equipment, analysed by the k-
geographical area in which the assets are located:
Carrying amount of Additions to property,
segment assets plant and equipment
DEHEERESH M - BB RREHER
Year ended Year ended
31.12.2005 31.12.2004 31.12.2005 31.12.2004
—ETLE —TENF —EFHRE _TTMOF
+=ZA=+-8B +=ZA=+—H +=ZHA=+-B +=ZA=+—H
LtZEE FZ5FE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
BETT BT EBETT BT
The PRC h 2,223,532 2,022,703 122,854 188,894
Singapore and Malaysia s &
5P an 824,424 719,531 71,994 110,885
3,047,956 2,742,234 194,848 299,779
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8. Research and development
expenses, net
The Group received research and development
grants from government sources. During the year
ended 31 December 2004, government grant of
HK$992,000 had been deducted from research
and development expenses. The Group did
not receive any grant for the year ended
31 December 2005.

Included in research and development expenses
is depreciation on property, plant and equipment
of HK$6,040,000 (2004: HK$5,927,000) and
rental of land and buildings under operating
leases of HK$2,826,000 (2004: HK$2,606,000).

9. Finance costs

The amount represents interest on bank

borrowings wholly repayable within five years.

HERERFXH

EEERN G THERERZER -R_F
TNFE+-_A=Z+—BILFR  BFEHE
HAB® 992,000t EEMEREEE AN
BeE@BR-_ZEERF+-_A=+—81
FRIEESTRERY -

MREERIHBEENE  BEREE
2T E A ¥6,040,000T (ZEZ U F ¢
7 #5,927,000T) - RAEZEBRAOBERAK
T REFHEE BB 2,826,0007T
(ZZZ M4 : B¥2,606,0007T) °

MEEH
AREENZBEENRITER
FBHRIE -

10. Income tax expense FEHREX
2005 2004
—ETnE —TTMF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT
Current tax: REARIIE -
Hong Kong BB 44,334 61,347
Other jurisdictions Hib R AR 7,695 7,016
52,029 68,363
Under(over)provision in prior years: NEFERFRETR (B%)
Hong Kong HE 2 (86)
Other jurisdictions HihRlE#ERR (1,061) (2,028)
(1,059) (2,114)
Deferred tax charge (credit) (note 25) RERHE M (Ee) (MiE25)
Current year REE 2,469 (6,462)
53,439 59,787

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been calculated at
17.5% (2004: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable
profit for the year.

Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated at the

rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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10. Income tax expense continued FiEhFxE
The charge for year can be reconciled to the profit Uiz RFTFIBR AT EFI B2 F 8 2 HIBE X
before taxation per income statement as follows: 1 ¥ BB a0 T
2005 2004
—ETRE —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Profit before taxation G 0p % 903,924 1,062,382
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 17.5% LA #h F 45 B % 17.5%
(2004: 17.5%) (ZZEZTEFE 175%) A E A 158,187 185,917
Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in 2T TE B AR B I B S A HUR A
determining taxable profit MXHBRIBEZTE 12,480 4,032
Tax effect of income that is not taxable in determining BT TE B AR B K B A AR
taxable profit WAL Rz & (10,997) (7,324)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ARTFUBRBEBELERE 2 ZE 23,818 14,530
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating EEMENEEEL S ZWE R A
in other jurisdictions MEZRBBTE (49,515) (41,718)
Effect of tax exemption under the MH status [ E AP M m T 18
HE2HE (74,469) (90,114)
Effect of tax concession/exemption granted to PRC B R D R RS fR 18
subsidiaries HeEEZTE (5,124) (5,028)
Overprovision in prior years TEEERBZ (1,059) (2,114)
Others HAh 118 1,606
Tax charge for the year AEEHREBERAX 53,439 59,787
Note: B3
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The domestic tax rate (which is Hong Kong
Profits Tax rate) in the jurisdiction where the
operation of the Group is substantially based

is used.

The Group's profit arising from the manufacture
of semiconductor equipment and materials in
Singapore is non-taxable under a tax incentive
covering certain new products under the
Manufacturing Headquarters (“MH") status
granted by the Singapore tax authority. The tax
exemption applies to profits arising for a period
of 10 years from 1 January 2001, subject to the
fulfilment of certain criteria during the period.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group were exempted

from PRC Income Taxes for two years starting from

their first profit-making year, which is 2003,
followed by a 50% reduction for the next

three years.

Ay & (ANBEREHE) DRASED
TELEREEROTE

SEFTINE D BEE MBTRE [ EER

BMIRE  REFNEMEERREZHH

ﬁEb?Jr%IJ CARBEFRMEEEZETF
ERRBROBMERAES ZENBA

R BZEE—F—A—AR+TFAR -
EFMELBEITE FTHRET  ZEESR
1BHEB M-

ERHELE BB RS EE
NEE_ZZE=-FREARMWFEREMRG
B HR=FFEF -
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12.

11. Profit for the year FEFERF
2005 2004
- cleck - —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Profit for the year has been KFERZGFEME
arrived at after charging:
Auditors’ remuneration % EUAT B & 4,626 3,685
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment TS S R®H 448 —
Depreciation we 154,445 182,114
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BER
plant and equipment BEZEE 3,551 32,247
Minimum lease payments for land and buildings T REF s EERD
under operating leases Z&EEE 31,503 32,551
Shipping and handling expenses BRRRERS (21
(included in selling expenses) EHEBRN) 9,989 9,340
Employee benefits expense, including EEBMAX 2
directors’ emoluments EEMe 776,939 747,686
and after crediting: WEFA :
Interest income FEWA 15,025 7,923
Directors’ emoluments Exie
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the B EN TR TNER 2~ (ZEE
six (2004: seven) directors were as follows: FrH)EFOHWT:
Year ended 31 December 2005
—EFRAF+T-A=+—HLZEE
Lam See Fung Tang Lee
Arthur H. Pong, Shu Kan, Orasa Koon Hung,  Shiu Hung,
del Prado Patrick Alan Livasiri Eric Robert Total
PRED e 5 18 AR B 5 ki ki
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT BT BETT BEFr BETT
Fees e — - 300 299 299 898
Other emoluments Hih <
Salaries and other benefits e REHMF 12,131 2,272 — — — 14,403
Contributions to retirement RKRBHEGIEZ
benefits schemes 34 719 170 — — — 889
Performance related incentive BRERRZ
payments (Note) #e (fat) 2,500 450 — — — 2,950
Total emoluments B & 48 %8 15,350 2,892 300 299 299 19,140
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12. Directors’ emoluments continued

80

Year ended 31 December 2004
ZETNF+ A=+ —HILZFE

Lam See Fung Tang Lee Paulus
Arthur H. Pong, Shu Kan, Orasa Koon Hung, Shiu Hung, Cornelis
del Prado Patrick Alan Livasiri Eric Robert  Van den Hoek Total
KB BE IR B, 2 (Y3 FEk]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BT BT ABTr A%t BBt BETx B¥Frx B¥Trx
Fees e — — — 300 96 8 300 704
Other emoluments H B &
Salaries and other benefits FekHEMME — 6,107 1,444 — — — — 7,551
Contributions to retirement RIKEFISIEZ
benefits schemes R — 685 166 — - — - 851
Performance related incentive A RBI&KIE 2
payments (Note) 2o (FIsr) — 2,500 350 - — - — 2,850
Total emoluments B 48 %8 — 9,292 1,960 300 96 8 300 11,956
Note: BTsE -

The performance related incentive payment is
determined with reference to the operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics
during both years.

For the year ended 31 December 2005, 205,000
shares of the Company were issued to certain
executive directors under the Scheme, and the
fair value of these shares at date of grant was

included in salaries and other benefits above.

For the year ended 31 December 2004, 205,000
shares of the Company were issued to certain
executive directors under the Scheme. The value
of such shares was calculated with reference to
the nominal value of shares issued and included
in salaries and other benefits above.

FRAXRAZRSN2EEEMFHNLERE
BARR BTG LRMRE -

HE-ZZRAF+-A=T—HILFE "
ARRRBEHERSE TRAITEFEDT
205,000l AR B - ZEROREHA
ZAFEECERAELAZHE REM
MEEA ©

HE_ZTTWNE+_A=+T—BILFE "
RATMRBSIERE FRITEF LT
205,000l R A B » s S in 2 BETD
SBERTRHZEEAEMTELERE
Tt z#5e REMFIZEA -
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13. Employees’ emoluments

81

The five highest paid individuals included two
(2004: two) directors, details of whose
emoluments are set out in note 12. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2004: three)

individuals were as follows:

18 & % M
ANBEHFMZATREMLES (CFT
M WD) ABEMS 2 HERAR B
BRERMEELI2E - BT=RMAL (ZTEW
o Zfi) 2 MEmT

2005 2004

—TTARE —TENF

HK$’000 HKS$'000

BETT BT T

Salaries and other benefits e REHMAE 12,390 6,223
Performance related incentive payments EBERBE2HES 2,064 1,342
Contribution to retirement benefits scheme RREF B E 2 3K 581 388

For the year ended 31 December 2005, 205,000
shares of the Company were issued to the
relevant highest-paid employees under the
Scheme, and the fair value of these shares at
date of grant was included in salaries and other

benefits above.

For the year ended 31 December 2004, 180,000
shares of the Company were issued to the
relevant highest-paid employees under the
Scheme. The value of such shares was calculated
with reference to nominal value of shares issued
and was included in salaries and other benefits
above.

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

RE-FTEFT-A=t+-ALEE.
ARFRBHENEWEBTEMZAL
172050008 A& 2 T * HEBH R
BB AFHEECEEE LLZFS
SETLETR

HE-_ZZWF+-_A=+—HBILFE -
ARARREFHENEEESFM AL H
17180,000fx A 2 A B fn » R F B n 2 &

ENZ2REBTERMZEEEMAELD
BREELAZHSLHEMAEA -

FHEEHFMEZLT

Number of employees

BEAH
2005 2004
—ETARE ZETNF
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 712,000,000 — 7 % 2,500,0007T — 2

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000

HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000

7 13,000,0017C — % 3,500,0007C
75 #54,000,0017T — 7% #4,500,0007T
75 154,500,001 — 7% #5,000,0007T
715,500,001 — 7 %6,000,0007C
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14. Retirement benefits plans

82

The Group has retirement plans covering a
substantial portion of its employees. The
principal plans are defined contribution plans.
The plans for employees in Hong Kong are
registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO Scheme”) and a
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”) established under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance in December 2000.
The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly
contributions from both employees and the
Group at rates ranging from 5% to 12.5% of the
employee’s basic salary, depending on the

length of services with the Group.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the
MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by

the employees.

The employees of the Group in the Mainland
China, Singapore and Malaysia are members of
state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the relevant governments. The
Group is required to contribute certain percentage
of payroll costs to these schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to these schemes is to make the
specified contributions. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of trustees, and
in the case of Singapore and Malaysia, by the
Central Provident Fund Board of Singapore and
Employee Provident Fund of Malaysia
respectively.

iB R 4R 5T 8
AEERBE-BHEAREASNEEZ
BARGHE - HhZ X EFE /A E 2 MR
B - BBEIZERAKFERE —EE
B 2R IKET B R O T IR A AR IKET 8
(MBEERARE]) R—ER_FTZTF
T AERSIERESF BRI TR
mHERESFE ([BESFE]) -
ZEEZEERAEB ZEENRE
B IHEFAREDTEE -

BERKFE ZECKEREERAEHE
EHTZEAHRR  LEXHEREFHZ
5%ZE125% N E - RFHEREE 2 R
FEME °

ERBRESFEZKE  ARERBRES
AEIFEZHARARERRBEIEKAZ
5% - MiE8 2 HARLL KIFHER -
AEBEBAEPEARE - K RFRAEZ
BEOREMBARLZBERERRKE
M8 ZKE  AEBEARE B H
R ERERAKREANAFTES  HERELEH
TERAZETANL - REBHZE
AEEREZEEREFEEEZHK -
ZEHEZEERAEBEZEED R
B UARBETEAAREERTE - M EHINK
LERADZHRNBFINEFRIED
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14. Retirement benefits plans continued
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83

The amount charged to the income statement
which amounted to HK$42,757,000 (2004:
HK$39,781,000) represents contributions payable
to the plans by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the plans less forfeitures of HK$549,000
(2004: HK$830,000) arising from employees
leaving the Group prior to completion of

qualifying service period.

At the balance sheet date, there were forfeited
contributions which arose upon employees
leaving the retirement plans and which are
available to reduce the contributions payable in
the future years amounting to HK$66,000
(2004: nil).

BAEFRGTEIE

e Wz 3 = bR 2 FRIB A ¥ 42,757,0007T
(ZZZMF : B¥39,781,0007T) * Jh¥E
AEERZEHEEE 2 LENZH2
W RBRIEE R TG BRI F A
B 7 AR &2 [ 1 0% W2 5K T8 78 5 549,000 T
(ZZZM4F : B%830,0007T) °

REEBEBERAZHEB  BEEBRILRIK
eEtEIMEEATHARARFERDAZA
5k 208 W kI8 & 5 566,000 TT
(ZEZTNF : &) -

Dividends 8
2005 2004
—ETnE —ETMEF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BETT BEFT
Interim dividend paid of HK$0.50 FEIR B ERBRE0S0T (ZTTWEF ¢
(2004: HK$0.45) per share on 385,268,500 7 0.4570) & % T 385,268,500%
(2004: 383,470,000) shares —ZTF ¢ 383,470,0000%) 192,634 172,561
First special dividend paid of HK$0.20 BRERREERAEBK020T(ZEZTHEF ¢
(2004: HK$0.55) per share on 385,268,500 7 160.557T) Ik 3 T 385,268,500/%
(2004: 383,470,000) shares — T T P04 ¢ 383,470,0000%) 77,054 210,909
Proposed final dividend of HK$1.00 BHERPREFRBEE1.00T(ZTTNF -
(2004: HK$1.05) per share on 387,059,500 8 #EHK$1.057T) ik 3 T 387,059,500/%
(2004: 385,268,500) shares (—ZEEm4 : 385,268,5000%) 387,059 404,532
Proposed second special dividend of HK$0.30 BERFE_RERNRESREE0.30T
(2004: nil) per share on 387,059,500 shares ZEETMF ¢ ) IKE T 387,059,5000% 116,118 —
772,865 788,002

The final dividend of HK$1.00 (2004: HK$1.05)
and second special dividend of HK$0.30

(2004: nil) per share have been proposed by the
directors and are subject to approval by the

shareholders in general meeting.

EEQRRRMNAERETREE1.00T
(ZZZMF: B¥1.05T) BB ZIRERIR
BEREK0I0T (ZETWF: &) AR
REBFAL LEBBRE  FADIK -
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16. Earnings per share BiRi& 7
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings HBAREREEAEBGERERNREE R
per share attributable to the ordinary equity FTARIE T 5 BUERET & -

holders of the parent is based on the

following data:

2005 2004
—ETLF —TTMF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Earnings for the purposes of basic and ATEERERNREE R
diluted earnings per share & 3R FE A 5 850,485 1,002,595

Number of shares
(in thousand)

etz &E
(AFALET)
Weighted average number of shares
for the purposes of basic earnings AEERERRMNZ
per share DnE R 385,352 384,313
Effect of dilutive potential shares from the REREERMDEEGIE 2
Employee Share Incentive Scheme BEEETE 1,450 1,451
Weighted average number of shares
for the purposes of diluted earnings FTEEREERN 2
per share b 9 R B 386,802 385,764
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e
17. Property, plant and ME  BRERRE
equipment
Furniture,
Buildings Leasehold fixtures
outside improve- Plant and and
Hong Kong ments  machinery equipment Total
BB AN HHMmE HeE  EM - EE R
2T EiE& Bigi P
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT ABETT BT BETT
The Group &M
Cost RAE
At 1 January 2004 R-EEMFE—F—8 229,108 188,066 1,265,085 73,982 1,756,241
Exchange adjustment ME 5 R B 573 124 658 187 1,542
Additions bk 92,937 15,913 187,022 3,907 299,779
Disposals & (755) (4,050) (118,662) (6,324)  (129,791)
Reclassification EXibR — (15,547) 66,357 (50,810) -
At 1 January 2005 R-ZZETHF—-A—H 321,863 184,506 1,400,460 20,942 1,927,771
Exchange adjustment ME 5 R (412) (168) (1,463) (137) (2,180)
Additions bt 17,236 29,054 143,347 5,211 194,848
Disposals HE - (1,513) (65,283) (1,127) (67,923)
Reclassification B HMA (48,433) 49,738 524 (1,829) -
At 31 December 2005 R_ZZERE+_A
=+—H 290,254 261,617 1,477,585 23,060 2,052,516
Depreciation and impairment NERAEE
At 1 January 2004 N_ZZNE—F—H 129,034 123,540 757,779 59,052 1,069,405
Exchange adjustment M 5 230 120 423 152 925
Provided for the year EEEEE 8,714 16,751 153,217 3,432 182,114
Eliminated on disposals H 6 R i R - (1,717) (91,032) (3,930) (96,679)
Reclassification B HMA - (784) 43,362 (42,578) -
At 1 January 2005 RZZETHF—A—H 137,978 137,910 863,749 16,128 1,155,765
Exchange adjustment ME 5 R B (368) (56) (1,366) (146) (1,936)
Provided for the year EEEEE 12,176 21,708 119,761 800 154,445
Eliminated on disposals & B R — (1,513) (61,155) (1,120) (63,788)
Reclassification EXibR (46,298) 46,298 41 (41) —
At 31 December 2005 R_ZZERE+_A
=+—4 103,488 204,347 921,030 15,621 1,244,486
Carrying values RREE
At 31 December 2005 RZZETRF+T=A
=+—H 186,766 57,270 556,555 7,439 808,030
At 31 December 2004 R_TEWFE+=A
=+—8 183,885 46,596 536,711 4,814 772,006
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17. Property, plant and equipment V¥ BRERREE
continued
Items of property, plant and equipment are M BEREKH22BBHRAEZEATT
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the FEERFERE

following rates per annum:

Buildings BF 4.2% to 4.5%
Leasehold improvements HumERE 33 Y%
Plant and machinery HEER 10% to 33 /%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment R~ EBRE 10% to 20%
18. Prepaid lease payments BHHEEHR
The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent EEENHEEERRER
property interest in leasehold land outside BEAIIAFEBHEERE 2
Hong Kong under medium-term leases. HE T B E R o
Analysed for reporting purposes as: PR AB AR :
The Group
£
2005 2004
—ETLE —TEWF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Current R E) 448 446
Non-current JERED 8,951 9,370
9,399 9,816
19. Inventories BE
The Group
£E
2005 2004
—ETLE —TEWF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Raw materials R 153,595 157,334
Work in progress T M 373,227 326,062
Finished goods Epges 82,523 71,434
609,345 554,830
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20. Trade and other receivables

87

5 & H i FE W AR 3=

The Group
3]
2005 2004
—TTEE —ETEF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
EBTR BT T
Trade receivables B 5 RKER 843,280 597,164
Other receivables, deposits and HEmERER - &e
prepayments PSEINE S5 46,810 44,466
Amounts due from ASM International group ASM International & & 2 &) BT K
companies — trade (Note) #IE — B 5 (K 2,165 593
892,255 642,223
An aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows: B S EWRZ R 20T -
Not yet due & 7 B HA 595,643 380,045
Overdue within 30 days B HI30K 151,619 132,935
overdue within 31 to 60 days B 315 60K 64,098 56,985
Overdue within 61 to 90 days & #i61E 90K 24,221 19,331
Overdue over 90 days i B B 1B 90K 7,699 7,868
843,280 597,164
Credit policy: BEEHE :

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit
together with deposits. Invoices are normally
payable within 30 days to 60 days of issuance, except for
certain well established customers, where the terms are
extended to 3 to 4 months. Each customer has a pre-set
maximum credit limit.

Note:

Amounts due from ASM International group companies are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable according
to normal trade terms.

The fair value of the Group’s trade receivables,
other receivables and deposits at 31 December
2005 was approximate to the corresponding

carrying amounts.

EENRTETEREEMA S - #EBE
EEHR=TERNTRABNHAMNK - HEE
TEERFNRFIRIN  ENFHELER
E=ZENA - B-FEPYITARRER
IR -

BT -

ASM International &£ & A A T R A A
IR - BB RBE-RESERR
TEEE -

AEERBE_ZTAF+ A
ST HZESERKRER  HEit
UER R BN R FEERLHE
FHEHE -
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21. Trade and other payables B 5 & Hfth FE AR X
The Group
%
2005 2004
—ETLF —TTME
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT
Trade payables B S EMNER 315,032 193,448
Other payables and accrued charges H h B BR AR
KEFTEA 269,402 267,428
Amounts due to ASM International group R ASM International £ & 2 7]
companies — trade (Note) FE— B H (M) 586 408
585,020 461,284
An aging analysis of trade payables is as follows: EBZEMNEXBRRTOT
Not yet due 8 K B 5 191,659 93,201
Overdue within 30 days A HI30K 82,442 55,543
Overdue within 31 to 60 days AHIZ1E 60K 39,330 39,275
Overdue within 61 to 90 days i1 #6122 90K 1,384 5,334
Overdue over 90 days i HR B 3 90K 217 95
315,032 193,448
Note: Bt EE

22
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Amounts due to ASM International group companies are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable according
to normal trade terms.

The fair value of the Group’s trade and other
payables at 31 December 2005 was approximate

to the corresponding carrying amounts.

Notes payable to a bank

The amount represents discounted bills with
recourse in which the Group remains the credit
risk of the bills receivable and the carrying
amount approximated to the corresponding

fair value.

/R ASM International 5= & A Rl X IE T B
B EmA B RIRE —RE S IER
REEE -

AEBRBE-_ZZTRF+=A
ST BRZEIRNERNAFEE
ELERESR -

FE 1 ER 1T R %

HEBACHRZMERERE -
AEEDRBLEEREEL GEE
Bl AEEEETEAFEE -
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23. Share capital of the company ATRE
Number of shares Share capital
EnE ¢ &N
2005 2004 2005 2004
—EBFERE —_TTNF —EBTRE —TTNF
(in thousand)  (in thousand) HK$’000 HK$'000
(AFHist)  (BATFhzsh) BEFT BETT
Issued and fully paid: B#ITE
BERAK -
At 1 January ®—HF—H 385,269 385,018 38,527 38,502
Shares issued under the Scheme 3 I ER So)
Z B 1,791 1,799 179 180
Shares repurchased and cancelled 5 % & it 8
Z &1 - (1,548) - (155)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 387,060 385,269 38,706 38,527

The authorised share capital of the Company is
HKS$50 million, comprising 500 million shares of
HK$0.10 each.

During the year, 1,791,000 shares were issued
at par to eligible employees and members of

management under the Scheme.

0n 21 February 2006, the Group resolved to
contribute HK$180,000 to the Scheme enabling
the trustees of the scheme to subscribe for a
total of 1,800,000 shares at par in the Company

upon the expiry of a defined qualification period.

89

ARRBZEEBRAREERTET O 5
HER - SREESK0.107T -

RER > ARRRIEREE R EBHE -
MARERZEERERMEKEREE
#471,791,0000% °

MR-ZBEXF-_A-+—B  KNEEH
BB B 180,0007T ¢ FHIE 2 55 ARIE
EZEBRBMERS  SUEREEREAR
A ) B& 17 ££1,800,0008% -
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24. Employee Share Incentive Scheme

90

The Scheme is for the benefit of the Group's
employees and members of management and
has a life of 10 years starting from December
1989. 0On 25 June 1999, at an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company, the
shareholders approved to extend the period of
the Scheme for a further term of 10 years up to
23 March 2010 and allow up to 5% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time,
excluding any shares of the Company subscribed
for or purchased pursuant to the Scheme since
23 March 1990, to be subscribed for or
purchased pursuant to the Scheme during the

extended period.

0n 24 February 2005, the directors resolved to
contribute HK$180,000 to the Scheme, enabling
the trustees of the Scheme to subscribe for a
total of 1,800,000 shares in the Company for the
benefit of employees and members of the
management of the Group upon expiration of the
defined qualification period as determined by
the Board of Directors. The vesting period for the
year is from 24 February 2005 to 15 December
2005. 1,791,000 of these shares entitlements
were issued on 15 December 2005 and the
estimated fair value of these shares at the

date of grant amounted to approximately
HK$56,954,000. 9,000 shares were unallotted
by the Company on the same date. The fair
value was determined with reference to market
value of shares at date of grant, and adjusted for
the terms and condition upon which the shares

are granted.

0n 21 February 2006, the Directors resolved to
contribute HK$180,000 to the Scheme, enabling
the trustees of the Scheme to subscribe for a
total of 1,800,000 shares in the Company for the
benefit of employees and members of the
management of the Group upon the expiration of

a defined qualification period.

18 S iz 1 58 By 1 2
IHEFAFEEEEREERENE

ZHEmMER - BERATF  R—ANANF
TZARR R ANNFERAZTAA

BITZRARBRRFHIARE L J&%ﬁt}&
ZHELERTF RBE_Z-TF=H
—+=81k PA&ELE,HHF‘EEJW@%E%%%U
ERBEABEZRNHBERERSELRT
BERTERAASZE (FBEE-ALESF
ZSA-T=ZBERBEZVNERBREREZ
EAREAER) -

EEgR _ZERAF AT WMA#HRSA
26 2 {308 £ 180,0007T © LAE X HIE 2

ABERASEEEREREERBEXNER
ExolETeRBBERS  REZER
#%4& $£1,800,000/8 A&~ B9 © ANFEHY
SEHA_ZTRF_A-_tHNE_ZZT
FFE+-_A+HB R-_ZEZTRFE+=-A
+EH Eéé%ﬂ,?m,oooﬁx R T HZA
B fn 2 (& 5T A F (B E A ¥ 56,954,0007T °
EEBRRBRFHEEFRREEITAHI000
e A EED2BERODEBETFTEB TS
BERTE  UREETRG ZGRE
FE -

EFEEeN_ZTEERF_A-_t+—HZ’
7] 5% 1) £ 4 308 15 180,0000T + A fF 5% #1 /2
ZIEFEARETCAKBEBEMRE - 3K
EEREREERENERaRESH
1,800,0008% 2~ A AI R 15 ©



Notes to the Financial Statements continued

B 5 A Wt A

25. Deferred taxation
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A summary of the major deferred tax liabilities
and assets recognised and movements thereon

during the current and prior reporting periods is

EIEHIR

RAFREFEERBRTHINEIRE

as follows:
Accelerated
tax Tax
depreciation losses Others Total
mETE LB TIEE R Hth B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BEFTT BETT
The Group &5
At 1 January 2004 R-ZZmFE—F—H 22,439 (13,031) (2,534) 6,874
(Credit) charge to income for the year REFWAZ (ER) X (19,473) 13,031 (20) (6,462)
Exchange differences EHER (3) — (23) (26)
At 31 December 2004 and R-ZENFE+_H
1 January 2005 —tT—HERZZETHF
—A—8 2,963 - (2,577) 386
Charge (credit) to income for the year REFWRA 2 ZH (Ex) 9,888 (6,695) (724) 2,469
Exchange differences EHER (5) 3 (14) (16)
At 31 December 2005 RZZEZRFE+_A
=+—8 12,846 (6,692) (3,315) 2,839
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25. Deferred taxation continued

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax

balances for balance sheet presentation purpose:

BIEHRIAE
AT REER BB REERBERIE
FTiEZ S

2005 2004

—ETLF —TENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT BT T

Deferred tax liabilities RERIEEE 2,957 2,385
Deferred tax assets BT IEE E (118) (1,999)

2,839 386

At 31 December 2005, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$179,317,000 (2004:
HK$139,233,000) available to offset future
taxable profits. At 31 December 2005, a deferred
tax asset amounted to HK$6,692,000 (2004: nil)
was recognised for such losses and no deferred
tax asset was recognised in respect of the
remaining tax losses of HK$141,077,000

(2004: HK$139,233,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit stream. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HKS$41,444,000 that will expire during the year
2007 to 2012 (2004: HK$31,302,000 that will
expire during the year 2007 to 2011). Other
losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

92

E-ZEERF+-_A=+—"H A5H
BAE¥A179,317,0007 (ZZZMF : B
139,233,0007T) &) A A 7 4§ R 5k B AR X it
MEOREERE R-_ZEERF+-_A=+
—H - ERBZBEER T A%6,692,000
T(ZZETNF - |WELEHBEE  F
BREBISE I8 BB 141,077,000 (Z 2 F
P4 : 5% 139,233,0007T) * B A & KA F
WA TER M - FTAKRERRAETERIE
BE RABANBHEERBBAER
41,444,000 iR ZETLFE_T—ZF
EIHA(Z T MF - % 31,302,00070 1 5
BER-—_TT+FE-_T——FHH) - &
ftb B518 A DAEPR BAMD 458216 1A o
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26. Purchase of a subsidiary
On 1 January 2004, the Group acquired 100% of
the issued share capital of ASM Pacific Assembly
Products, Inc. for a cash consideration of
HK$466,000. This transaction was accounted for

using the purchase method of accounting.

W B — FE it B A B

AEBR -_ZETNF—A—BUBESRE
75 466,0007T Y B ASM Pacific Assembly
Products, Inc.Z 2 # B B1TH D - kR 5
AN EE 5 AR o

2005 2004
—ETEE —ZTTWF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Net assets acquired: WEEEFHE :
Inventories wa — 165
Trade and other receivables B 5 N H e U BR 3R — 3,308
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS — 2,196
Trade and other payables B 5 K& E e BR 3R — (5,203)
— 466
Cash consideration ReNE — 466
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: KEEERIFHREKA
Cash consideration RERE — (466)
Bank balances and cash acquired WEEHRITRE B RIS — 2,196
— 1,730
The subsidiary acquired did not make any EFEZMBAR 2B MY ARNEER
significant contribution to the results and cash XERBRESRETRERNER ©
flows of the Group in the previous year.
27. Contingent liabilities HAEE
The Group
L]
2005 2004
—TTEE —ETEF
HK$’000 HKS$'000
BETT BT T
Guarantees given to Singapore government i T RTINS BT 2R oM T A
for working permit of foreign workers RN TR IR R
in Singapore 581 715
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28. Capital commitments BEXRKiE
The Group
£
2005 2004
—ETLF —ETEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition EENEBERRMBHRRABRZ
of property, plant and equipment contracted for FHBEDE BERREBZ
but not provided in the financial statements BEARYH 17,279 37,311
Capital expenditure in respect of acquisition of EHEBRARENCARES
property, plant and equipment authorised but mE - - BEREZEZ
not contracted for BEARYH 180,895 156,671
198,174 193,982
The Company had no significant capital RAARERAEBRBERAEERIT &
commitments at the balance sheet date. BREREIE -
29. Operating lease commitments EERLRIE
At 31 December 2005, the Group had R-EERAF+_A=+—H "
commitments for future minimum lease REBREBEAAIREEEHOM
payments under non-cancellable operating T R F 2w 2 R RRE LY
leases in respect of property interest in land and NREER :
buildings which fall due as follows:
The Group
£
2005 2004
—EEAE —ETME
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Within one year —F R 28,700 25,915
In the second to fifth years inclusive E_FZERF (RIEERWE) 54,499 46,714
Over five years Bl F 25,824 29,314
109,023 101,943
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Operating lease payments represent rentals
payable by the Group for certain of its
manufacturing plants, office properties and
quarters. Except for land leased from the
Singapore Housing & Development Board for

a period of 30 years (renewable upon expiry
for a further term of 30 years), other leases are
negotiated for an average terms of two to

five years.

The Company had no operating lease

commitments at the balance sheet date.

EEMANNRBAKERETHSE - HQ
ENFEEZEMES - BT R MEE
ENBEREZESEARP=TFN L
SMAEREH=TF) RENFHERM
FERAFEE— K-

ARRAEEERBEREERYELXM
WK o
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30. Share option schemes
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ASM International has adopted various share
option schemes for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to the directors and eligible
employees of ASM International and its
subsidiaries. Under these schemes, key
employees of ASM International and its
subsidiaries may purchase a specific number

of shares of ASM International. Options are
priced at market value in Euros or US dollars on
the date of grant, are generally vesting in equal
parts over a period of five years and generally

will expire after five or ten years.

A summary of the movements of share options
of ASM International granted to the directors of
the Company and eligible employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries in respect of

services provided to ASM International is

20 B HESt &

ASM International 5 FA LA 818 R B% 2 51 &
LA 22 B ASM International &2 H M & 2 A1 49
EEREEKRET - RIEELETE - ASM
International R KM B AR EEE T
A] B8 B 35 7T 8l E HASM Internationalig 2 -
REEEEABRTERUBTHETA
BAUHHE —RMs5  ZERRETR
TFAABEHESBITE  URAFK
TFBEE -

A FASM International R 1% F A A 7
EETRAQNAMEMBRARINEGEKET
B B H IR 45 ASM International ) AR 75 A9 &£
AT

as follows:
Held by
Held by eligible
directors employees
BERA AAKET
BHE
At 1 January 2004 RZZETNF—A—H 382,000 319,700
Exercised during the year RARFRITE (25,000) (27,910)
At 31 December 2004 RZZEENFE+=—A=+—H 357,000 291,800
Forfeited during the year AR F RE 1K — (2,000)
Exercised during the year RAERITE - (3,200)
At 31 December 2005 RZZEZTRF+=ZA=+—H 357,000 286,600

The exercise prices of the above outstanding
options are ranged from US$15.44 to US$19.32
(2004: Ranged from US$15.44 to US$19.32).

A EBBITRBREITEERN T15.44E T
F£19.32F L 2B (ZEZWNF M F15.44
ETLE1932E T 2M) -
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31. Connected and related party

@)

(b)

96

transactions

During the year, the Group paid an annual
management fee of HK$1,500,000 (2004:
HK$1,500,000) to ASM International under a
consultancy agreement between ASM
International and the Company. Pursuant to the
agreement, ASM International acts as a
consultant, introduces new business and provides
assistance in business development, general
management support and services, international
expertise and market information to the Group.
The agreement, which commenced on 5
December 1988, was for an initial period of three
years and is terminable thereafter by six months’

notice in writing by either party.

0n 10 August 2005, the Company entered into a
service agreement (the “Service Agreement”)
with ASM Front-End Manufacturing Singapore
Pte. Ltd. (“"FEMS"), a wholly owned subsidiary of
ASM International. Pursuant to the Service
Agreement, the Group provides computer
software installation consultancy services to
FEMS in its implementation of a particular
enterprise resources planning software in its
production facility in Singapore, at a quarterly fee
of US$90,000. The Service Agreement was for a
term of one year and commenced from 16
August 2005 to 15 August 2006. Details of the
Service Agreement are set out in the
announcement dated 15 August 2005 made by
the Company. Management service fee received
during the year amounted to approximately
HK$1,047,000 (2004: nil).

R Bk B B 3 X 53

(a) R 4% — T8 © ASM International £2 7K 2 7]
A2 BE WS EERAEERASM
InternationalsZ f & 3£ # % % 1,500,0007C
(ZZZT W4 : %#1,500,0007T)  B#&
Z 1 a  ASM International{Z T A & &
B AAEENBHEGRREHES
BR2WE —MEEIERIERE
BEREENHERTISEM - ZipEd
—ANANE+_ARBRER - ¥
BRE=F  HEJHEM—FUANEAR
E@MBAMALL ©

R=—ZEZTRFNA+TH  KAARHAE
ASM International 2 & & [} & 2 =]
ASM Front-End Manufacturing Singapore
Pte. Ltd. ([FEMS]) 25T 7 —H R 15 1%
& o RIBEZRBG W - AKERFEMS
REERAGLENBEBRYE - REML
PR AN B9 A EE AR b 2 K — B 55 TE /Y
rEERFEEN  FFEBEARET
90,0007 - ZMRBHHER/BM—FH_Z
EZRFNA+AABEZZEZARFNA
THBL - RBBEFAANDD T
RARTR_ZEZRAFN\ATHBZA
HoRAFE  AEBBEWRIMZREE
#) /378 %1,047,0007T (ZEZEF 1) o
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31. Connected and related party

©
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transactions continued

0n 16 March 2004, the Company entered into a
management and production agreement (the
“M & P Agreement”) with ASM International.
The M & P Agreement was commenced from the
date of the Agreement for a term of one year
and is terminable by three months’ notice in
writing by either party. Details of the M & P
Agreement are set out in the announcement
dated 18 March 2004 made by the Company.

Pursuant to the M & P Agreement, the Group
provides management services (including
services for administration and financial matters
and provision of supporting personnel) to ASM
International group companies in respect of the
production facility of ASM International
established in the Republic of Singapore, at a
quarterly fee of HK$375,000 (2004:
HK$375,000). Management service fee received
during the year amounted to HK$1,500,000
(2004: HK$1,187,500).

In addition, the Group also agrees to

manufacture metal parts for ASM International at

a cost-plus basis. The manufacture of metal parts

for ASM International during the year amounted
to approximately HK$8,279,000 (2004:
HK$1,996,000).

foR Bkt T AL 4 X B 4

CORZZETZWMF=A+ 8 A aH
ASM International# 5] 7T —IBEE B KA E
Wk (M &P] %) ° %M & Pifpi A%
FTERER - RH—F  TREM—F
N=—@EAZmBAMKIE - M&PHH
ZHMAREFIERARRR -ZTEN
FZA+NBZzRE -

RIEZM & P2 - AEERBASM
International £ B 2 &) FAFT N3 38 57 2 &
EREREEEERSE (RETREN K
FEEHIBRBERREBAELR)  §F
#H A8 8 375,0007T (— 22 P4 ¢
FEHE375,000T) - RAFE - AKEE
WE v &2 B A 1,500,000T (ZF
T U4 : 5 H1,187,5000T) °

ANEE B 5 [R) B DA RR AN DN AR B B ASM
International & & & BB - RAFE
AEERENRECBREBLENS
18,279,000 —EZ LA -

75 11,996,0007T) ©
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31. Connected and related party

(d)

()
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transactions continued
Compensation of key management personnel
The emoluments of directors and other members

of key management during the year was

foR Bk It A 32 32 B 4

(A TEEEAB ZH
AFEEEERAMEFEERKNE 2
B&mT

as follows:
2005 2004
—EFTRE ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT BT
Short-term benefits 52 HR &= 23,731 22,034
Share-based payments ARG 2 9 32 Y 13,992 45
37,723 22,079

Certain shares of the Company were issued to
the key management under the Scheme. The
estimated fair value of such shares were included

in short-term benefits for the year ended

31 December 2005. For the year ended 31 December

2004, the value of such shares is calculated with
reference to the nominal value of such shares in
accordance with the preceding accounting
standards.

The emoluments of directors and key executives
is determined by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

During the year ended 31 December 2004,
the Group acquired the entire interest of a
subsidiary from ASM International at a
consideration of HK$466,000.

AARREBESHEMEEEREHTET
RATRY - ZERD A2 AFEE
EREE—_EERFE+-_A=+—H1t
FEHNEHMNGERN BE_ZTZTHF
+TZA=+—BLFE  ZEBRHZ
BEDKELZBUA S ER ZKMR
Bzt & -

EERTBETHAEBNMESIMFME
BERTEAXRRETHBRMARE

SN

(e —EBEENF+-_A=+—HFE
£ E LA 7B 5 466,0007T 2 R (B B ASM
International W 8% & T~ — R M /B 2 &) Z BT
g o
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32. Particulars of principal subsidiaries
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of the Company

Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2005 are as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

Nominal value of

R_EERF+=-_A=+—
CTEWNBAREBOT ¢

FEXEMBATIZHE

H

Proportion of nominal
value of issued ordinary

share/registered capital

Name of subsidiary establishment issued capital held by the Company Principal activities
LIy =PNCIER ERiyioavirs: bl BETRAZEERE RAR BT FEXH
ikl /E
fi& 7 AR B 2 Lt
Fixed-rate Ordinary shares/
participating registered
shares capital Directly  Indirectly
D EEEF Lmiy/ HE &
S H RN
ASM Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$27,000 HK$1,000 100% — Providing purchasing services
S EEEM BB 78 27,0007 751,000 7T to group companies
BRAA RURBERETEEANAA
ASM Assembly Hong Kong HK$100,000 HK$1,000 100% — Manufacture and sale of
Automation Limited a5 75 1£100,0007T 781,000 7T semiconductor equipment
SEBHRMERAA BlERNEFEEEN
ASM Assembly Equipment  Thailand — Baht7,000,000 — 100% Agency and marketing service
Bangkok Limited ES 7% 67,000,000 RERTIZER
ASM Assembly Equipment  Malaysia — MYR10,000 — 100% Agency and marketing service
(M) Sdn. Bhd. BRADR 10,0005 2R 78 58 7T RIB RIS H &
ASM Semi-conductor PRC — US$11,000,000 — 100% Manufacture of
Materials (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.* 11,000,000 7T semiconductor materials
S ERM BE L E YR
CRYN BRA T
ASM Assembly Equipment  PRC - US$200,000 - 100% Trading in semiconductor
Trading (Shanghai) 2 200,000 7T equipment
Co., Limited*® BEFBEEM
LBEPRMEERES
(L8 BRAE”
ASM Assembly Materials Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 HK$10,000 100% — Trading of semiconductor
Limited &5 751 2,000,0007T 75 110,000 7T materials
S G RYB R EEFERYE
BRAR
ASM Assembly Products Netherlands — EUR 18,151 100% — Trading in semiconductor
B.V. Gl 7T 18,151 equipment
EEFERAM
ASM Assembly Technology  Japan — JPY10,000,000 100% — Trading in semiconductor
Co., Limited =[N 10,000,000 H equipment
BEEFEESREM
ASM Pacific (Bermuda) Bermuda — U$$120,000 — 100% Insurance services to group
Limited BRE 120,0003 7T companies
SERNRA R 2RI IRES
ASM Pacific International Cayman Islands — HK$100 100% — Investment holding
Marketing Limited FEerRs 51100 7T REER
ASM Pacific Investments Hong Kong — HKS2 100% — Investment holding and
Limited BB B2 T agency services
FEKRFEFRE REERRRIBRS
BRAA
ASM Pacific KOR Limited Hong Kong — HK$500,000 100% — Marketing services in Korea
- 75 #5500,0007C TR {E T I5 1 E
ASM Technology Singapore  Singapore — $$53,000,000 100% — Manufacture and sale of
Pte Limited b 53,000,000%7 03 7T semiconductor equipment

and materials
BUE R EFEEEEM
&R
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Details of the principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2005 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

REXEMBATNZHES

R_EERAF+=-_A=+—8H
ZEFEMBARGFBOT :

Nominal value of
issued capital

Proportion of nominal
value of issued ordinary
share/registered capital

held by the Company

Principal activities

MEARERE Ry avirs: Vsl BETRAZEERE RABPIHEE T FEXH
el dnyssaiii
A& AN BR E (B 2 LE I
Fixed-rate oOrdinary shares/
participating registered
shares capital Directly  Indirectly
D EEEN Lmhk/ H#E Bk
B AR A
ASM Pacific Assembly United States — US$60,000 — 100% Trading in semiconductor
Products, Inc. of America 60,0003 7T equipment
ES BEVEEEM
ASM Technology (M) Malaysia - MYR74,000,000 100% — Manufacture of semiconductor
Sdn. Bhd. BREE 74,000,000% 2K 78 22 T equipment and materials
BLEFEBEM YR
Edgeward Development Guernsey, - Us$10,000 - 100% Investment holding and
Limited Channel Islands 10,0003 7T provision of manufacturing
BRESIRAS and marketing infrastructure
in Mainland China and Asia
BEERRIEFBARER
TMEHEER TS EER
Shenzhen ASM Micro PRC - (Note) - (Note) Manufacture of parts of
Electronic Technology Gl (PR &E) (P 5E) semiconductor equipment

Co., Limited
RIS EE TR
BRAR

SUEF BN
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of the Company continued

Note:

Under a joint venture agreement, the Group has
committed to contribute 100% of the registered
capital of HK$477,300,000 in Shenzhen ASM
Micro Electronic Technology Co., Limited
(“MET"), a co-operative joint venture company
established in the PRC with a term of 10 years
commencing October 1994. On 23 February
2004, the term was approved to extend for a
further period of five years to October 2009.

At 31 December 2005, the Group has paid up
approximately HK$447,300,000 as registered
capital of MET. The Group has to bear the entire
risk and liabilities of MET and, other than a fixed
annual amount attributable to assets contributed
by the PRC joint venture partner, is entitled to
the entire profit or loss of MET. On cessation of
the joint venture company, the Group will be
entitled to all assets other than those contributed
by the PRC joint venture partner and those
irremovable building improvements. On 1 April
2004, the Group applied for the de-registration of
Shenzhen ASM Precision Machinery Manufactory
Limited (“PMM”) and approval to merge the
operations of PMM with MET. PMM is the
subsidiary of the Company as at 31 December
2004. On 27 July 2005, the de-registration of PMM
was approved and the operations of PMM were

merged with MET from that date.

*Established as a wholly foreign owned

enterprise in the PRC.

FEXEMBATNZHES

B EE -

KREBEEARYN  AEETERTH
M 2 EERERARIRYI S EME T
B ARAA (MHME TR E&ZAF
=E Ml B K 7% 5 477,300,0007T 2 100% © A 1
Hp—NAhmE+ AR BETF - »
—EENFE-_A-F+Z=HB RAEBKE
BHZEEHERERILEBERAF
EZTNFTA - RZZTTAHF
TZA=1+—H  AEBEEXNHBE
447,300,0007CfE B E F R A F MR E
Koo A MBEAEBKEESN  BAE
CERERAREMBELEREZESF
EREREIN  RNEEBBEEMSFRE
rHRABREEE  UAZHEREEMRET
Mgz 2iafsEE 4888 7R
BHEE BRPBREGELERRAMIEEZ
BERTABH 2EZEMELEI)  AEH
NEZBEWMEFREZHEBEEMEE -
RZZETZWFMA—A - AEEARFIIE
ERETRRMREERA B AE RS
THECEEBMBETREAGMH - R
ZZEENFEF+ A=+ B FRIEERE
BREEARARAEENHBAR - B
ZZETERFELAZT A - EEEBEE
MEEERMETHZABELEEBN
WMEFRIEAG -

TERBRRINEEERE
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of the Company continued

Note: continued
All the principal subsidiaries operate
predominantly in their respective place of

incorporation/establishment unless specified

”

otherwise under the heading “principal activities”.

The fixed-rate participating shares of the
subsidiaries are held by ASM International.
These shares carry no voting rights, no rights to
participate in a distribution of profits, and very

limited rights on a return of capital.

No debt security has been issued by any of the
subsidiaries at any time during the year or is

outstanding at the end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Group which, in the opinion of the Directors,
principally affected the results or net assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the Directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

REXEMBATNZHES

st : &
BEIEZXH]IBEAZEHAN AEX
ZMBRREREERN 2 ZEM /K2ty
MEHTEER -

M8 ARl 2o = EERE KRG HEBEASM
International TiF A * ZEMRMDIAZFIRE
R NEEZES RGN - WER
TRERRZHAFEEHR ZEF o

EMBARAERFEMERTERILS -
KEFR/REBREEZERIES °

EEZERRLRILAKEZHERR
BAKREZXEREERERRE EF
SRR EMMB AR ZFEEERIE
BRITE -
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For the year ended 31 December
BHE+-A=+—HILFE

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
—ERRFE —TTNEFE —ZTT=F ZTT-F ZZTT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EBETRT BT BT T BEFIT BETT
Results ES
Turnover ] 3,536,855 3,828,930 2,604,823 1,846,016 1,560,227
Profit before taxation F 758 A1 903,924 1,062,382 587,128 302,181 249,126
Income tax expense FT 5 %5 A 2 (53,439) (59,787) (51,255) (17,477) (17,880)
Profit for the year AN i A 850,485 1,002,595 535,873 284,704 231,246
At 31 December
®+=—A=+—8H
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
—EBRRFE —TTNEFE —TT=F ZTT-F ZZTT—F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETRT BT BT T BEFIT BETT
Assets and Liabilities BEHAR
Non-current assets EMBEE 817,099 783,375 698,560 710,325 757,578
Current assets MENVEE 2,230,975 1,960,858 1,783,315 1,412,955 1,407,930
Current liabilities mEa & (651,583) (564,383) (557,146) (357,004)  (320,925)
Net current assets MENEEFE 1,579,392 1,396,475 1,226,169 1,055,951 1,087,005
Non-current liabilities IR EE (2,957) (2,385) (9,227) (10,204) (15,536)
Equity attributable to equity BRAERFA
holders of the parent AR 2,393,534 2,177,465 1,915,502 1,756,072 1,829,047




12/F Watson Centre

16-22 Kung Yip Street

Kwai Chung, Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2424 2021
Facsimile (852) 2481 3367

ASM Asia Limited

ASM Assembly Automation Limited
ASM Assembly Materials Limited

ASM Technology Singapore Pte. Limited
ASM Technology (M) Sdn.Bhd.

ASM Micro Electronic Technology
Company Limited, Shenzhen

ASM Semi-conductor Materials (Shenzhen)
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